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These consolidated financial statements were peepiar accordance with International Financial R&pgr
Standards as approved by the European Union (Eeme accepted by the Management Board of ENEA
S.A.

Members of the Management Board

Chairman of the Management Board  Maciej Owczarek e

Member of the Board Maksymilian Gérniak ..o,
Member of the Board Hubert Rozgdek
Member of the Board Krzysztof Zborowski ...,

Poznai, 12 April 2011

Prepared by: Robert Kiereta ..................
Consolidated Accounting Office Manager
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(if not indicated otherwise, all amounts in PLNX)O

Consolidated balance sheet

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Land perpetual usufruct right

Intangible assets
Investment proper

Investments in associated entities measured wiihyemethod
Financial assets available for sale

Financial assets measured at fair value througfit proloss
Trade and other receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Current income tax receivables
Financial assets held to maturity

Financial assets measured at fair value througfit proloss
Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current assets held for sale

Total assets

As of
31.12.2010 31.12.2009

8 308 650 8 060 674
29 208 28 090
145 141 47 985

8 20: 6 091

170 220 189 938
74 867 39 346
1411 1219

168 1330
8 737 868 8374673
242 058 300 830
922 460 925513
1819 12 828

250 934 55734
1781939 1652523
899 627 902 543
4 098 837 3849971

- 5044
12 836 705 12 229 688

The consolidated balance sheet should be readyjaiith the notes constituting an integral partieg consolidated financial statements
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(if not indicated otherwise, all amounts in PLNX)O

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent

Share capital

Share premium

Share-based capital

Revaluation reserve (financial instruments)
Other capitals

Retained earnings

Minority interest
Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Credit facilities and loans

Trade and other liabilities

Finance lease liabilities

Settlement of income due to subsidies and conmetdies
Provision for deferred income tax

Liabilities due to employee benefits

Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Current liabilities

Credit facilities and loans

Trade and other liabilities

Finance lease liabilities

Settlement of income due to subsidies and connetdies
Current income tax liabilities

Liabilities due to employee benefits

Liabilities due to an equivalent of the right tayaze shares free of charge
Provision for certificates of origin
Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

As of
31.12.2010 31.12.2009

588 018 588 018
3632 464 3632464
1144 336 1144 336
50 922 20 756
(22 110) (22 110)
4 458 944 3985 386
9 852 574 9 348 850
23 897 23778
9876 471 9 372 628
72 362 107 056

2 58

1742 2291
713 215 747 117
80 453 112 366
428 134 407 093
78 068 30217
1373976 1406 198
42 398 49 951
1017 805 971 962
2134 1178
122 370 102 213
72 159 71359
146 864 125542

557 618

92 646 46 539
89 325 81 500
1586 258 1450 862
2 960 234 2 857 060
12 836 705 12 229 688

The consolidated balance sheet should be readyjaiith the notes constituting an integral partieg consolidated financial statements

6
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(if not indicated otherwise, all amounts in PLNX)O

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Sales revenue

Excise duty

Net sales revenue

Other operating revenue

Amortization / depreciation

Costs of employee benefits

Consumption of materials and raw materials andscofstjoods sold
Energy purchase for sale

Transmission services

Other external services

Taxes and charges

(Profit) / loss on sale and liquidation of progeplant and equipment
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

Other operating expense

Operating profit

Financial expenses

Financial revenue

Dividend income

Share in profits/losses of associates measured thsnequity method
Profit before tax

Income tax %

Net profit for the reporting period

Other items of comprehensive income

Measurement of financial assets available for sale
Income tax related to other items of comprehenisiveme
Other items of net comprehensive income

Comprehensive income for the period

Including net profit:
attributable to shareholders of the Pe

attributable to minority interests

Including comprehensive income:
attributable to shareholders of the Parent
attributable to minority interests

Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Rare
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Net earnings per share (in PLN per share)

Diluted earnings per share (in PLN per share)

12 months ended

12 months ended

31.12.2010 31.12.2009
8 087 940 7 418 304
(251 065) (264 795)
7 836 875 7 153 509
84 292 78 599
(652 672) (661 345)
(924 356) (823 964)
(1 535 465) (1573 232)
(2 689 513) (2 350 461)
(693 340) (694 791)
(364 550) (331 998)
(199 959) (171 261)
(7 124) 1453
(6 143) (8 942)
(136 081) (111 962)
711 964 505 605
(41 003) (33 020)
140 493 170 370
774 2335
988 7 766
813 216 653 056
(173 835) (139 446)
639 381 513 610
34 685 26 981
(4 519) (5 126)
30 166 21 855
669 547 535 465
639 26: 513 58¢
119 21
669 428 535 444
119 21
639 262 513 589
441 442 578 441 442 578
1,45 1,16
1,45 1,16

The consolidated statement of comprehensive incbroeld be read jointly with the notes constitutamgintegral part of the consolidated

financial statements
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(if not indicated otherwise, all amounts in PLNO)O

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Revaluation Capital
Share capital Revaluation of Total share Treasury Share-based Share reserve Other Retained  attributable to Total equity
(face value) share capital capital shares capital premium (financial capitals earnings minority q
instruments) interests
Balance as o' 01.01.201 441 44 146 57! 588 01¢ - 114433 3 632 46- 20 75¢ (22 110 3985 38! 23 77¢ 9 372 62i
Total profit 30 166 639 262 119 669 547
Dividends (167 748) (167 748)
Other 2044 2044
Balance as of 31.12.2010 441 443 146 575 588 018 - 1384 3632 464 50 922 (22 110) 4 458 944 23 897 9876 471

The consolidated statement of changes in equityldhe read jointly with the notes constitutingiategral part of the consolidated financial statetae



ENEA Capital Group

Consolidated financial statements prepared indiitie EU-IFRS for the year ended 31 December 2010

(if not indicated otherwise, all amounts

in PLNO)O

Revaluation Capital
Share capital Revaluation of  Total share Treasury Share-based Share reserve Other Retained attributable to Total equit
(face value) share capital capital shares capital premium (financial capitals earnings minority quity
instruments) interests
Balance as of 01.01.2009 441 443 146 575 588 018 (B) 39 1144 336 3632 464 (1 099) (28 226) 3675078 31078 0249253
Total profit 21 855 513589 21 535 465
Dividends (203 281) (6) (203 287)
Disposal of treasury shares acquired
under the stabilization option 17 396 17 396
Settlement of acquisition of subsidiaries 6116 (7 315) (1199)
Balance as of 31.12.2009 441 443 146 575 588 018 - 13864 3632 464 20 756 (22 110) 3985 386 23778 9372 628

The consolidated statement of changes in equityldhze read jointly with the notes constitutingiategral part of the consolidated financial statetae
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Cash flows from operating activitie:

Net profit for the reporting peri

Adjustments
Income tax disclosed in the income statel
Amortization / depreciatic
(Profit) / loss on sale and liquidation of prdyeplant and equipme
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipi
Write-down of goodwi
(Profit) / loss on sale of financial as¢
Interest incom
Dividend income
Interest expens
Share in the (profit) / loss of associ
Exchange (gains) / losses on credit facilitied an:
Other adjustmer

Income tax pai
Interest receive
Interest pai

Changes in working capit
Inventorie
Trade and other receivak
Trade and other liabiliti
Liabilities due to employee bene
Settlement of income due to subsidies and cdiumefee:
Provisions for certificates of oric

Liabilities due to an equivalent of the rightaequire shares free of cha

Other provisior

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activitie:

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment an@nyible asse
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and eqeix
Acquisition of financial asse

Proceeds from disposal of financial as

Dividends received

Other outflow:

Net cash flows from investing activit

Cash flows from financing activities

Credit facilities and loans recei\

Credit facilities and loans rep:

Dividend paid to Parent’s shareholc

Payment of finance lease liabilit

Proceeds from sale/release of treasury s

Other adjustmen

Net cash flows from financing activiti

Net increase (decrease) in cash

Opening balance of ce
Closing balance of cash

12 months ended

12 months ended

31.12.2010 31.12.2009
639 381 513 61(
173 835 139 44¢
652 672 661 34¢

4184 (1453
6 861 8942
385 16 832
7210 (25 740
(146 327 (140 439
(774) (2 335)
9051 11 524
(988) (7 766
(1742 (782
(2 481 (5 066
701 886 654 50¢
(199 225 (111 597
57 264 133 50:
(6 099 (12 204
60 777 (30 911
2935 (141 188
(93 446 62 827
41 863 (38 072
(31 407 44 051
46 107 (54 864
(61) (163 181
55 692 (6 347
82 460 (327 685)
1275 667 850 13¢
(852 170 (764 296
8946 16 43¢
(470 440 (1 905 500
239 615 321 713
16 181 10 51F
(9 745 (11 391
(1067 613 (23325189
12328 139C
(49 480 (52 031
(167 748 (203 064
(4521 (3 740
- 22 47¢
(1549 (765
(210 970 (235 731
(2 916) (1718 116)
902 543 2 620 65¢
899 627 902 54:

The consolidated statement of cash flows shouleae jointly with the notes constituting an intdgrart of the consolidated financial

statements
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(if not indicated otherwise, all amounts in PLNX)O

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. General information

1.1. General information about ENEA S.A. and the ENEA Caital Group

Name (business name):
Legal form:

Country:

Registered office:
Address:

NUMBER IN NATIONAL COURT
REGISTER (KRS):

Telephone:

Fax:

E-mail:

Website:

Statistical number (REGON):

Tax identification number (NIP):

ENEA Spétka Akcyjna
joint-stock company
Poland
Pozna
ul. Nowowiejskiego 11, 60-967 Pozna

0000012483

(+48 61) 856 10 00
(+48 61) 856 11 17
enea@enea.pl

www.enea.pl
630139960

777-00-20-640

The main activities of the ENEA Capital Group (“@p3, “Capital Group”) are:

- production of electricity (Elektrownia "Kozienit&.A., Elektrownie Wodne Sp. z 0.0.);
— trade in electricity (ENEA S.A));

- distribution of electricity (ENEA Operator Spoa.);

As of 31 December 2010 the shareholder structurtheParent was as follows (an increase in thesshar
capital as a result of an issue of shares undeibkcpoffering was registered in the National CoRegister

on 13 January 2009): the State Treasury of the Blepof Poland — 52.92% of shares, Vattenfall ABR8-67,
other shareholders — 28.41%.

As of 30 December 2010 the statutory share camifaENEA S.A. equalled PLN 441,443 thousand
(PLN 588,018 thousand upon adoption of IFRS-EU @ntkidering hyperinflation and other adjustments) a
was divided into 441,442,578 shares.

As of 31 December 2010 the Capital Group comprisedparent ENEA S.A. (“the Company”, “the Parent”),

19 subsidiaries, 1 indirect subsidiary and 3 asdesi

These consolidated financial statements have bespaped under the going concern assumption. There a

no circumstances indicating that Group’s abilityofterate as a going concern may be threatened.

The notes presented on pages 11-99 constituteegrahpart of the consolidated financial staterment
11



ENEA Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements prepared iniitie EU-IFRS for the year ended 31 December 2010

(if not indicated otherwise, all amounts in PLNX)O

1.2. Composition of the Management Board and the Supersory Board

As at 31 December 2010, the composition of the Maneent Board was as follows:
Maciej Owczarek — Chairman of the Board;

Maksymilian Gérniak —Member of the Board in Chaojé&€ommercial Affairs;
Hubert Rozpdek — Member of the Board in Charge of Economica#$f;

Krzysztof Zborowski —-Member of the Management Baar@harge of Generation.

On 16 April 2010, the Supervisory Board of ENEA Sdsmissed Maciej Owczarek, Stawomir Jankiewicz,
Piotr Koczorowski, Marek Malinowski and Tomasz Tei. At the same time, the Supervisory Board
appointed the following individuals:

Maciej Owczarek as the Chairman of the Managemeatr®

Maksymilian Gérniak —Member of the Management Baar@harge of Commercial Affairs;

Hubert Rozpdek —Member of the Management Board in Charge oh&mic Affairs;

Krzysztof Zborowski - Member of the Management Bbiar Charge of Strategy and Development.

On 12 July 2010, the Supervisory Board approvednament to the “Regulations regarding Management
Board of ENEA S.A.” involving a change in the namithe position held by Krzysztof Zborowski from
Member of the Board in Charge of Strategy and Dmweent to Member of the Board in Charge
of Generation.

As at 1 January 2010, the composition of the Sugery Board for the 7th term was as follows:

Michat tagoda

Tadeusz Dachowski

Piotr Begier

Pawel Balcerowski

Wojciech Chmielewski

Marian Janas

Michat Kowalewski,

Wiestaw Pawliotti

Mieczystaw Pluaiski.

Graham Wood.

On 26 March 2010, the Extraordinary Shareholdergetihg of ENEA S.A. dismissed the following
individuals from the Supervisory Board:

Michat tagoda

Piotr Begier

Marian Janas

Wiestaw Pawliotti

and at the same time appointed the following Supery Board members for the 7th office term:

Pawel Lisiewicz

Matgorzata Aniotek

The notes presented on pages 11-99 constituteegrahpart of the consolidated financial staterment
12
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(if not indicated otherwise, all amounts in PLNX)O

Bartosz Nowicki

Jeremi Mordasewicz

2. Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements were peepiar accordance with International Financial R&pgr
Standards as approved by the European Union (Eeme accepted by the Management Board of ENEA
S.A.

The Management Board of the Parent Company hasitsskest knowledge as to the application of stessla
and interpretations as well as measurement methadsprinciples applicable to the individual items o
the consolidated financial statements of the ENE&pi@l Group in accordance with IFRS UE as at
31 December 2010. the presented statements anahexipins have been prepared using due diligenaseEh

consolidated financial statements were audited tsrtified auditor.

3. Description of key accounting principles

The key accounting principles applied in the prapan of these consolidated financial statemente lteeen

presented below. the principles have been apptedistently in all the presented financial periods.

3.1. Basis for preparation

These consolidated financial statements for thenitral year ended 31 December 2010 have been prepar
in compliance with the requirements of the Inteioral Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by
the European Union (“EU-IFRS").

These consolidated financial statements have bespaped on the historical cost basis, except foarftial
assets measured at fair value through profit & ésswell as financial assets available for satestware-based

payments.

3.2. Consolidation principles

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries include all entities whose financiadl @perational policy may be managed by the Gradych
usually results from the majority of votes in then@pbany’s decision-making bodies. When assessinghehe
the Group controls an entity, the existence andachpf potential voting rights that may be exemtise
or exchanged at a given moment are taken into deraion. the subsidiaries are subject to consmdida
using the full method as from the date of the Glm@ssumption of control over such entities. They @ot

consolidated starting from the date when the Gtoses control over them.

The cost of business combination, which is not uroEmmon control, is measured as the fair value of
the assets given, equity instruments issued ardlities incurred or assumed at the date of exchang
Identifiable assets, liabilities and contingentbiigies acquired in a business combination are suesd

initially at their fair value at the acquisitiontdairrespective of the minority interest, if ail@oodwill arising

The notes presented on pages 11-99 constituteegrahpart of the consolidated financial staterment
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from an acquisition results from a surplus of tbasideration paid, NCI and fair value of sharesiongsly
held in the entity over the Group's share in thefaie value of the identifiable assets, liabilgiand contingent

liabilities as of the acquisition date.

If negative goodwill occurs, the Group verifies rfaialue of each net asset acquired. If following

the verification, the goodwill remains negativeisitmmediately recognized in profit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealiaéts on transactions between Group’s companies ar
eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminateléss there is an impairment indicator of the tirmed
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries havenbelganged where necessary to ensure consistenhy wit

the policies adopted by the Group.

(b) Associates and jointly controlled entities

Associates include all entities over which the Grdwas a substantial influence without exercisingtias,
which usually results from holding 20%-50% of théat number of votes in an entity’s decision-making
bodies. Investments in associates are accountedisiog the equity method and are initially recogdiz
at cost. Any surplus of the cost over the fair eadd identifiable net assets of an associate #isechcquisition
date is recognized as goodwill. Goodwill is incldda the carrying amount of investments with impant
measured in relation to the total investment valigy surplus of the Group's interest in the net anto
of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingdrbilities over the acquisition cost after revdlaa is

immediately recognized in profit or loss.

Jointly-controlled entities include all entitieseyvwhich ENEA S.A. exercises control together wather
companies based on contractual arrangements. megagt in jointly-controlled entities are accounfed

using the equity method in the same way as invessria associates.

The post-acquisition Group’s share in profits ossles of associates and/or jointly controlled estitis
recognized in the income statement, and Group’sesh& post-acquisition movements in other capitals
recognized in other capitals. the carrying valueimvestments is adjusted by post-acquisition cutiugda
changes in equity. When the Group’s share of logsean associate or jointly controlled entity egual
or exceeds its interest in the equity accountedcst® or joint venture, including any other ungedu
receivables, recognition of further losses is diticmed except to the extent that the Group hasbdigation

or has made payments on behalf of the investee.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Gaodpassociates or jointly controlled entities dirmiaated
proportionally to the Group’s interest in these iteg. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairmentheftransferred asset. Accounting policies of dases
and jointly controlled entities have been changdwne necessary to ensure consistency with theigolic

adopted by the Group.
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3.3. Business combinations/acquisitions

Accounting principles (policy)

Business combinations/acquisitions of jointly-cotied entities do not fall within the scope of IFRS
regulations. Considering the lack of detailed IFR§ulations, in line with the guidelines laid donAS 8 —
“Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estiesaand Errors”, the entity ought to develop acdognt

principles applicable to such transactions.

In line with the recommendation, the Group adoptad accounting policy according to which such

transactions are recognized in book values.

The accounting principles adopted by the Compaayaarfollows:

The acquirer recognizes the assets, equity anditied of the acquiree at their current book vahdjusted
only for the purpose of applying uniform accountipdnciples for the combined entities beginningnfiro
the acquisition date. Goodwill and negative goobigilnot recognized. Any difference between thekooo
value of the net assets acquired and the fair valfighe payment in the form of equity instruments
and/or assets issued by the entity is recognizéakeirquity of the Group.

When applying the method based on book amountsparative data for presented historical periodsnate
restated.

Business combinations/acquisitions of entities otti@an jointly-controlled companies are settledngsi

the acquisition method in line with IFRS 3.

3.4. Foreign currency transactions and measurement of feign currency items

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items presented in the financial statements ofviddal Group entities are measured in the curreoty
the primary economic environment in which the gntiarries out its business activity (functional remcy).
the consolidated financial statements are preseimethe Polish zloty (PLN), which is the functional

and presentation currency of all Capital Group canngs.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated upwir tinitial recognition to the functional currenat

the exchange rate ruling as at the transaction date

As at the balance sheet date, monetary assetsadildiés denominated in foreign currencies aemslated at
the closing rate (the average exchange rate pehlibly the National Bank of Poland as at the measeme
date).

Exchange gains and losses arising from settlemérforeign currency transactions and balance sheet
measurement of monetary assets and liabilities rdaraded in foreign currencies are recognized irfipro

or loss.
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3.5. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is measured at atiqnisprice or manufacturing cost less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

ENEA S.A. Capital Group applied the optional exemptprovided for in IFRS 1, and adopted the failuea

of selected items of property, plant and equiprasrthe deemed cost as at the date of transitiBUtFRS.

Further expenditures are recognized in the carrgimgunt of a given fixed asset or recognized aparate
fixed asset (where appropriate) only if it is prbleathat the Group will generate economic benefits
in connection with such an asset, whereas the obsan item may be reliably measured. Any other
expenditures incurred for repair and maintenaneerecognized in profit or loss in the period whbeytare

incurred.

If afixed asset is replaced, the cost of the igdacomponent of the asset is recognized in itsyioar
amount, whereas the carrying amount of the replamadponent is derecognized from the balance sheet

irrespective of whether it has been depreciatedrségly, and recognized in profit or loss.

Land is not subject to depreciation. Other fixede#s are depreciated using the straight-line methaat

the expected useful life of the asset. Depreciai®ncalculated based on the gross value reduced by
the residual value, provided it is material. Eacitarial component of a fixed asset with a diffenesful life

is depreciated separately.

The useful lives of fixed assets are as follows:

- buildings and structures 25 — 80 years
including power grids 33 years;

- technical equipment and machines 4 — 50 years

- vehicles 5—20 years

- other fixed assets 5—15 years

The residual value and useful lives of fixed asaetsreviewed at least on an annual basis.

Depreciation begins when a given asset has beemissioned for use. Depreciation is no longer recaagh
when an asset is to be sold or derecognized frerbatance sheet.

As an enterprise the Group receives fixed assetsstitoting power infrastructure free of charge.
Until 31 December 2009, fixed assets taken overeweeasured at fair value upon initial recognitiatith
their amount charged to income from fixed assetsived free of charge settled over time proportigria
depreciation of these fixed assets. Since 1 Janf@fdy, pursuant to IFRIC 18, components of power

infrastructure received free of charge are fullgrged to other operating revenue.

Gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets, wdooktitute the difference between revenue frorassahd

the carrying amount of the fixed asset disposedrefrecognized in profit or loss.
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3.6. Land perpetual usufruct right

Land owned by the State Treasury, local governmentheir associations may be used based on the rig
of perpetual usufruct (PU). the perpetual usufafdand is a special property right based on whpobperty

may be used with the exclusion or other partiesthaabject (right) may be disposed of.

Depending on the method of acquisition, the Grdapsifies the right of perpetual usufruct as fokow

1. PU acquired by virtue of the law free of chargespant to a decision of the Voivode or local
government authorities is recognized as an opeyétase;

2. PU acquired for consideration from third partiegdésognized as an asset under right of perpetual
usufruct at acquisition price reduced by depremmatiharges;

3. PU acquired under a land perpetual usufruct agreeewered into with the State Treasury or local
governments is recognized as a surplus of thefdfagiment over the annual fee, disclosed as an asset
under right of perpetual usufruct and depreciated.

The right of perpetual usufruct is depreciatechmperiod for which it was granted (40-99 years).

3.7. Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arising from an acquisition results fromsuarplus of the consideration paid, NCI and faituea
of shares previously held in the entity over thewr's share in the net fair value of the identiéabssets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities as of thegagsition date.

If negative goodwill occurs, the Group verifies rfaialue of each net asset acquired. If following
the verification, the goodwill remains negativeisitmmediately recognized in profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially recognized as an asset attcasd subsequently measured at cost less accuighulate
impairment loss.

For impairment testing purposes, goodwill is altedato each cash generating unit (CGU) that shbeitkfit
from the post-combination synergy. CGU to which gledwill is allocated are tested for impairmenten
a year or more frequently if according to reliablgsumptions, impairment could occur. If the recalbbr
amount of a CGU is lower than its carrying amotiné impairment loss is first assigned in ordereduce
the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to thaG@ and then to other assets of the unit pro rata t
the carrying amount of each asset belonging thetéi®mimpairment loss recognized for goodwill ist no

reversed in the following period.

(b) Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets include: computer softwlarenses as well as other intangible assets. gitténassets
are measured at acquisition price or manufactudost less accumulated amortization and accumulated

impairment losses.
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Amortization is calculated based on the straigm-lmethod, taking into account the estimated udgéul

amounting to:

- for server licenses and software 2 - 7 years;
- for workstation licenses and software as well ds\arus software 4-7 years;
- for other intangible assets 2 - 7 years.

(c) CO;, emission rights
CO2 emission rights granted free of charge by tageDistribution Plan (Krajowy Plan Rozdziatu)vasll as
acquired rights are classified as intangible assetsare subject to the following distinction: tiglgranted

free of charge are recognized at nil cost whereqaieed rights are recognized at acquisition price.

The provision for the actual G@mission is recognized at nil, as long as theah@mission does not exceed
the limits owned by the Group for the given yedr.tHe actual emission exceeds the limits owned by
the Group for a given year, the Group creates digiom for the purchase of additional emission tsgh

at the actual - as at the balance sheet date -etnarike of CQ emission rights.

Revenues from the sale of surplus emission rigigsexognized as at the selling date.

3.8. R&D expenses

R&D expenses are recognized in profit or lossériod when they are incurred.

Like other intangible assets, R&D expenses medtiegcapitalization criteria presented below are suesd
at acquisition price or manufacturing cost lessuaudated amortization and accumulated impairmesgds.
Amortization is calculated based on the straight-lmethod, taking into account the estimated udé@yl

which is 2-7 years.

Capitalization criteria:

- the technical feasibility of completing the intallgi asset so that it will be available for useales

- the intention to complete the intangible assetus®lor sell it;

- ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- how the intangible asset will generate probablairtuteconomic benefits. Among other things,
the enterprise should demonstrate the existenca mfrket for the output of the intangible asset
or the intangible asset itself or, if it is to beed internally, the usefulness of the intangibkegs

- the availability of adequate technical, financiatiather resources to complete the developmentand
use or sell the intangible asset;

- the ability to reliably measure the expenditureriaitable to the intangible asset during its

development.
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3.9. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that may be directly attributaliletie acquisition, construction or production afualifying
asset are capitalized as a portion of the acquisjprice or manufacturing cost of the asset. Ollogrowing

costs are recognized as expense in the period inbarred.

3.10. Leases

Lease agreements that transfer substantially altiths and rewards incidental to ownership toGheup are

classified as finance leases. Leases other thandleases are regarded as operating leases.

The object of a finance lease is recognized inagets as at the lease commencement date at #edow
the fair value of the leased asset or the presehtevof the minimum lease payments. Each finanasele
payment is divided into an amount reducing theiaeof the liability and financial expenses socaprbduce
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balaofcthe liability. the interest component of edehse
payment is recognized in the income statement twetease period in such away as to arrive atealfi
periodic interest rate compared to the unsettledility amount. Depreciable assets acquired unthante

lease agreements are depreciated over their ugeful

Lease payments under an operating lease (lesspaciakpromotional offers from the lessor) are grgped

as an expense on a straight-line basis over tise team.

3.11. Impairment of assets

The Group’s assets are tested for impairment whanthere are indications that an impairment losghii

have occurred.

Non-financial assets

An impairment loss is recognized up to the amountMhich the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. the recoverable amount isitffeeh of: the fair value less the costs of bringamgasset
into condition for its sale or value in use (ilee present estimated value of the future cash flewpected to

be derived from an asset or cash-generating Wot)the purpose of impairment testing, assets arepgd at

the lowest possible level with respect to whichesafe cash flows may be identified (cash-generatmts).

All impairment losses are recognized in profit osd. Impairment losses may be reversed in subsequen
periods (except from losses on goodwill) if eveatzur justifying the lack or change in the impainhe

of assets.

Financial assets

Financial assets are tested for impairment asdt balance sheet date so as to determine wheter sine
any indications of their impairment. It is assumibet financial assets have been impaired if these a
objective indications that one or more events hgvdmegative impact on the estimated future cashsfl

relating to the assets have occurred.
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Individual financial instruments with material valare tested for impairment on a case-by-case.lf@tisr

financial assets are tested for impairment by gsomiph similar credit risk.

The principles for recognition of impairment losses financial assets have been presented in detail
in Note 3.13.

3.12. Investment property

Investment real property is maintained in ordegeoaerated rental income, for capital appreciatiofooboth.

After the initial recognition, the Group selectde ticquisition cost model.

Investments in real property are depreciated agugrdo the straight-line method. Depreciation begin
in the month following the month of its commissiogi the estimated useful life period is as follows:

Buildings 25 — 33 years

3.13. Financial assets

Financial instruments are classified to the follogvcategories: financial assets measured at faievarough

profit or loss, loans and receivables, investmbetd to maturity and financial assets availablestde.

The classification is based on the purpose of atmuian investment. the assets are classified upitial

recognition and then reviewed at each balance sladet if required or accepted by IAS 39.

(a) Financial assets measured at fair value throughfipar loss

The category includes two sub-categories:

- financial assets held for trading if they haveebecquired principally for the purpose of beinddso
in the short term;

- financial assets designated as measured ataie ¥through profit or loss upon initial recognitio

These assets are recognized as current asséts,Gompany intends to sell or realize them witl2mionths

of the balance sheet date.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets withroéed or determinable payments, which are noteglion

the active market, not classified as derivativekeyl arise when the Group spends cash, deliverssgood
or services directly to the debtor without the imiken of classifying them as receivables held fading.

Loans and receivables are classified as curremtsagstheir maturity as at the balance sheet dats not
exceed 12 months. Loans and receivables whose ityadgrat the balance sheet date exceeds 12 mareghs

classified as non-current assets. Loans and rddeivaare recognized in the balance sheet undee trad
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and other receivables.

(c) Investments held to maturity
Investments held to maturity are non-derivativeaficial assets with determined or determinable patsne

and fixed maturity that the Group intends to anahike to hold to maturity.

(d) Financial assets available for sale

Financial assets available for sale are non-dévivdinancial instruments designated as “availdblesale”
or not included in any other category. This catgdocludes mainly shares in unrelated parties. Aik&ncial
assets are recognized as non-current assets Grthg does not intend to dispose of the investnagtitin

12 months of the balance sheet date.

Acquisition and sale of financial assets is recpgtias at the date of the transaction, i.e. thevdasn

the Group undertakes to purchase or sell a giveataBinancial assets are initially recognizedaat ¥alue
increased by transaction costs, except for invesisnelassified as financial assets measured atvidire
through profit or loss, which are initially measdi&t fair value without transaction costs.

Financial assets are derecognized from the acecmumécords if the rights to the related cash fldvase
expired or have been transferred and the Group ttzasferred substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to their ownership.

AFS and MFVTPL financial assets are initially renagd at fair value. AFS financial assets are mesaku

at acquisition price less impairment losses ikihbt possible to determine their fair value arglytdo not
have a fixed maturity. Loans and receivables ad a®lfinancial assets held to maturity are measured

at amortized cost using the effective interest rate

The effects of measurement of financial assetaiatvBlue through profit or loss are recognizedpiofit

or loss in the period when they occurred. the ¢ffe¢ measurement of AFS financial assets are rezed

in equity, except for impairment losses and exchagajns or losses on monetary assets. Upon deliéoogn

of an asset classified as “available for sale” frdime accounting records, the total accumulated itprof
and losses previously recognized in equity aregeized in profit or loss.

The fair value of investments quoted in an actiwkat is determined with reference to their curpantchase
price. If there is no active market for financiakats (or the securities are not quoted), the Gdetgrmines
their fair value using adequate measurement teaksigvhich include: recent transactions conducteteun
arm’s length conditions, comparison to other insteats which are identical in substance, an analysis
of discounted cash flows, option valuation modetsl ather techniques and models widely applied in

the market, adjusted to the specific situatiorhefissuer.

At each balance sheet date, the Group verifiesheinghere is any objective evidence indicating iimpant

of a financial asset or a group of financial assets

If such evidence exists in case of financial asagtslable for sale, the total accumulated lossesgnized

in equity, determined as the difference betweeratipiisition price and their current fair valueslg®ssible
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impairment losses recognized previously in profilass, are excluded from equity and recognizegrofit
or loss. Impairment losses recognized in profilass and relating to equity instruments are noersed
corresponding to with profit or loss. the revers@impairment losses on debt securities is recaghin profit
or loss if the fair value increased as aresultsobsequent events after the recognition of impaitme

in the periods following the recognition of the iaipnent loss.

If there are indications of impairment of loans aedeivables or investments held to maturity messsur
at amortized cost, impairment losses are determiasdthe difference between the carrying amount
of the assets and the present value of estimatedeficash flows discounted using the original effec
interest rate for such assets (i.e. the effectiverést rate calculated upon initial recognition dssets based
on afixed interest rate and the effective intemede determined for the last revaluation of aséetsed

on a floating interest rate). Impairment losses @eognized in profit or loss. Impairment is reesrs

if in subsequent periods the impairment decreasdstae reduction may be attributed to events tbatioed
after the impairment recognition. As a result ofensal of the impairment, the carrying amount o&ficial
assets should not exceed the amortized cost whmhldwbe determined had no impairment loss been

recognized. Reversal of impairment losses is reizegrin profit or loss.

If there are indications of impairment of unquotslity instruments measured at acquisition pricetifair
fair value may not be determined reliably), the anmtoof the impairment loss is determined as thieihce
between the carrying amount of the assets andrdsept value of the estimated future cash flowsadisted

using the current market rate of return for similaancial assets. Such impairment losses areavetrsed.

3.14. Inventories

Inventories are measured at acquisition price orufecturing cost not exceeding the net sellingepric
Cost is determined according to the FIFO methoeeixtrom production coal, biomass and limestonedsw

whose costs are determined in line with weightesraye acquisition price method.

3.15. Certificates of origin

Pursuant to Article 9a of the Energy Law, ENEA S:Aas an energy company involved in trading anessal
of electricity to end customers connected to th&gyogrid on the territory of the Republic of Polands
obliged to:

a) obtain certificates of origin and submit themthe President of the Energy Regulatory Office iideo to
redeem them, or

b) pay a substitute fee.

The certificate of origin confirms generation oéd@tricity in a renewable source (green certificdtessuch
sources as wind, water, sun, biomass) or in cogéiper(three types of sources: yellow certificai@sgas-
fueled sources or other sources up to 1 MW; retificates for sources above 1 MW capacity othentha

fueled with methane or biomass gas; purple ceatiis for sources fueled with biomass gas or methane
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removed from mines). the certificates are issuedhigyPresident of ERA following a motion of an aner
generator working based on renewable sources @neogtion.

Property rights to certificates of origin arise wwhe certificate of origin is entered into the régiskept by
the Polish Power Exchange (Towarowa Gietlda Ene3gii. — TGE S.A.). Property rights to certificates
of origin are transferable and traded on commaoekighanges.

Property rights to certificates of origin are tremeed when an appropriate entry is made in thesteg
of certificates of origin.

They expire upon redemption of the certificates.

ENEA S.A. is obliged to obtain and submit for regiion certificates of origin in the amount corresgimg
to the limits defined in ordinances issued basedherEnergy Law and expressed as a proportiorsdbtal
energy sales to end customers. the deadline foplgamg with the requirement of certificate redenoptior

substitute fee payment expires on 31 March of tllewing year.

The substitute fee is the product of the priceestdn the Energy Law and the difference betweeratheunt
of electricity resulting from the requirement of gagsition and redemption of certificates of origin
and the amount of electricity resulting from thetifieates of origin which were submitted for redgton
by an energy company in a given year.
Depending on the purpose of their purchase, thédicates of origin are classified as:

« long- or short-term financial assets, if acquirede¢ resold;

e aseparate category of long- or short-term asSsastificates of origin”), if acquired to be redeech

Certificates of origin produced by the Group areogmized at the moment of producing electricity gsrat
the date on which their issuance has become prehalmless there is a reasonable doubt regardin@ ER

President’s ability to issue them.

Purchased certificates of origin are measured st @chile those regarding energy generated in comces
are measured at the maximum price of the propégtyits accepted by ENEA in SPOT transactions (OTC

deals) in the month of generating the energy thificates relate to.

During the financial year and until 31 March of tblowing year, the Group submits certificatesooifyin for
redemption. In the accounting records redemptionceitificates of origin is recognized in line with

the detailed calculation method.

As at the balance sheet date, the certificatesrigfno(except for those acquired for resale) areasneed

at acquisition price, less potential impairmenstss

As at he balance sheet date, certificates of orgiquired for resale are measured at fair valuereds

the effects of the measurement are recognizedboifit pr [0ss.

If as at the balance sheet date the number oficatés of origin held by the Group is insufficieatprovision

for the substitute fee or for acquisition of cecates on the Polish Power Exchange required tisfgat
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the requirements imposed by the Energy Law is meizeg. the provision covers a number of certifisate
which represents the difference between the nunabecertificates redeemed for a given financial year
and the number required to be redeemed accorditiget&nergy Law. Provisions are first measuredoat ¢

of unredeemed certificates of origin held as atbthlance sheet date, and second, based on sub#ttuper
unit.

When estimating sales of electricity, the totalmsoiced energy sales to end users and estimales walume
determined as at the end of the reporting periodsisumed in order to ensure the matching of revenue

and expenses with the calculation basis of prorifio redemption of certificates of origin.

The provision is reduced by the amount of certiéseaof origin held by the Group.

3.16. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in handdepbsits with banks and other short-term investse

maturing within three months, with high liquidity.

3.17. Share capital

The share capital of the Capital Group is recoghirethe amount stipulated in the by-laws and tegésl
in the National Court Register, adjusted by thea# of hyperinflation as well as settlement of effects
of business combinations and acquisitions, respagti Increases in the share capital covered by
the shareholders as at the balance sheet datecangtnregistered in the National Court Register also

disclosed as share capital.

3.18. Credit facilities and loans

Upon initial recognition financial liabilities armeasured at fair value less transaction costs rieduby
the Group.

Following their initial recognition, financial lidiiies are measured at amortized cost using tfextfe

interest method.

3.19. Income tax (including deferred income tax)

Income tax presented in the statement of compréreimcome includes the current and deferred portio

The current tax liability is calculated based oe tiaixable profit (tax base) for a given reportirgyiqd.
the taxable profit (loss) differs from net accoungtiprofit (loss) due to the exclusion of taxableome
and expenses classified as tax-deductible theliowimg years as well as expenses and revenue whilth
never be subject to taxation. Tax liabilities asdculated based on tax rates applicable in a giregorting

period.
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The deferred tax is atax of from events that o@xliin a given period, recognized on the accruaisba
in the accounting records of the period but redlize future. It occurs when the tax effect of rewen
and expenses is the same as in the balance shgwrtains to other periods.

The balance sheet liability method is used to dateuthe deferred tax. the method is characterizil

temporary differences between the carrying andatagunt of assets and liabilities.

The carrying value of assets and liabilities redoggh in the accounting records is the base vallgchwis
compared to the tax amount and tax loss dedudtitflgure.
Differences between the carrying amount and tadevaf an asset or liability may include:
e a positive amount resulting in an increase of thare taxable base upon settlement
or realization of the carrying value of the asgdtability;
e a negative amount resulting in areduction of thare taxable base upon settlement
or realization of the carrying value of the asgdtability.
If the carrying amount of an asset or liabilityegual to its tax amount, no temporary differences

occur.

Temporary differences multiplied by appropriate tates produce assets for deductible and defeeed t

provisions for taxable differences.

The deferred tax provision resulting from taxaldenporary differences between the tax value of asset

and liabilities and their carrying amount is reciagd in the financial statements in its full amaount

The deferred tax asset is recognized if it is pbidahat the Group will generate taxable incomecivhill

allow it to deduct temporary differences or uselteses in the future.

The Company does not recognize a deferred tax assktiability if they result from the initial regaition

of an asset or liability arising from a transactather than a business combination and if the &etien does
not have an impact on the gross financial proglo@r the taxable profit when it is effected. Addially,
the deferred tax liability is not recognized witkspect to temporary differences arising upon initia

recognition of goodwill or goodwill whose amortiiat is not regarded as a tax-deductible expense.

No deferred tax asset or provision is created ompteary differences arising from investments irated
parties that jointly meet the following two conditis:
< the Group is able to control the timing of the msad of the temporary differences; and

e itis probable that the temporary differences wilt reverse in the foreseeable future.

The deferred income tax is determined based onrates (and regulations) which are expected to be
applicable when an asset is used and the lialsiit{led, on the basis of the tax rates (and regukt which
were legally or actually applicable as at the bedasheet date.

If the tax law allows changes in tax rates, thaltamount of assets and liabilities is calculateddcordance

with various tax rates.
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If changes in tax rates occur in the period fronertaining the deferred tax assets or provisionshesr
settlement, the effects of measurement of assetpmvisions are included in the reporting perindahich
the tax regulations have been amended.

Further, as at the balance sheet date at the,léitesentity tests the assets for impairment ireotd check
whether they still can be settled. If generatiotasfble income sufficient to use the deferredasset in part

or in whole is not probable, a corresponding impaint loss on the asset should be recognized.

Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss fagigen period, except for instances when deferred ta
1. pertains to atransaction or event that is geized directly in equity, in which case it is also
recognized in the relevant other item of equityetepng on an event it results from;
2. results from business combinations, in whichesait affects the value of goodwill or the surplus

of the interest in the net fair value of assets desiness combination costs.

Deferred tax asset and liabilities are set ofhdre is a legally enforceable right to set off eent tax asset
against a current tax liability when the deferrax asset and liability relate to income taxes kg the same
taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

For the purpose of balance sheet presentationdefegred tax asset and liability should be offset
and the surplus of the asset over the liabilityogeized (or the surplus of the liability over ajgetognized

in the balance sheet.

3.20. Employee benefits

The following types of employee benefits are redoggh by the Capital Group:

A. Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits include but are notitéid to: monthly wages, salaries, annual bonuses,

electricity allowance, short-term paid leave witltial security contributions, industry specific lisn

Liability due to short-term (accrued) paid leaverfpensation for paid leave) even if employees ate n
entitled to receive payment in lieu of holiday. tABmup determines the projected cost of accumulpted
leave as an additional amount that, according ¢feptions, it shall pay as a result of the unustbel defined

as at the balance sheet date.

B. Defined benefit plans
Defined benefit plans of the Capital Group include:

1) Retirement benefits
Employees retiring (eligible for disability benafitare entitled to receive retirement benefitsHa form
of cash compensation. the value of such benefiteerlts on the length of service and the remuneration

received by the employee. the related liabilitiesestimated using actuarial methods.
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2) Electricity allowance for pensioners

Retiring employees who have worked for the Group &b least one year are entitled to a reduced price
of consumed energy amounting to 3,000 kWh/yeacalse of an employee’s death, the right is trarefieto
his/her spouse if that person receives a familgvadhce. the related liabilities are estimated usicmarial

methods.

Pensioners and disability pensioners acquire tiie to an electricity allowance in the amount @08 kWh x
80% of the electricity price and the variable comgut of the transmission charge and 100% the fixed
network charge and subscription charge at theeinghe rate household tariff. the equivalent isl gaice

a year: by 15 May and by 15 September, each tintleeimmount of the half of the annual equivalent.

3) Jubilee benefits
Other long-term employee benefits include jubilemdfits. Their value depends on the length of servi

and the remuneration received by the employeerdlaged liabilities are estimated using actuariathods.

4) Appropriation to the Company’s Social Benefits& for pensioners

Pursuant to the Collective Labor Agreement, whdautating the annual appropriation to the Sociah&#s
Fund, the Group also takes into consideration paess entitled to the benefits. the liability icaognized
proportionally to the expected period of performimgrk by employees. the value of the provision is

estimated using actuarial methods.

Liabilities relating to the benefits referred topoints 1 are estimated by an actuary using thpgied unit

credit method. the total value of actuarial gaind Bsses is recognized in profit or loss.

C. Defined contribution plan

1) Social security contributions

The social security system in Poland is a statgnara, in accordance with which ENEA S.A. is obliged
make social security contributions for employeegmthey become due. No legal or constructive otiiga
has been imposed on the Company to pay future ibemefiating to social security. the costs of cimitions
pertaining to the current period are recognizedENEA S.A. in profit or loss as the costs of empye

benefits.

2) Employee Pension Scheme

Pursuant to Appendix No. 18 to the Collective LaBgreement, ENEA S.A. operates an Employee Pension

Scheme in the form of unit-linked group employesunance in line with the statutory principles amdier

conditions negotiated with the labor unions.
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The Employee Pension Scheme is available to alll@mps of ENEA S.A. after one year of service,
irrespective of the type of their employment cocttra
Employees join the Employee Pension Scheme unddbliowing terms and conditions:

- the insurance is group life insurance with insgeprotection;

- the amount of the basic premium is set at 7% efdarticipant’s salary;

- 90% of the basic premium is allocated to investopremium and 10% to insurance protection.

D. Share-based payments
Share-based payments relate to equity-settled sh-settled transactions in which the Group. receive
services (work performed by employees) as condgiderdor its equity instruments (shares) or theiste

equivalent.

The Group recognizes the services provided unddityesettled share-based payments and the corrdsmpn
increase in equity upon their receipt. If the segirendered in share-based payment transactionsiohde

classified as assets, they are recognized as a cost

The value of such cost is determined based onaihevélue and measured at grant date. As the fdirev
of the services provided by employees may not lterchéned directly, it is estimated based on theyalue

of equity instruments granted.

In cash-settled share-based payments the Groupunesaiss liability at fair value as at each reputdate
and as at the settlement date, whereas any chamdbe value are recognized in profit or loss fagien

period.

3.21. Provisions

Provisions are created if the Group has a predaigadion (legal or constructive) as a result gfast event,
and it is probable that an outflow of resources edying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount of the obligation bamnreliably estimated.

The amount recognized as a provision is the bdsh&® of the expenditure required to settle thesent

obligation as at the balance sheet date.

3.22. Revenue recognition

Sales revenue is measured at the fair value afdhsideration received or receivable less the vadlted tax,

discounts and rebates.

Revenue from the sales of energy and distributiervises is recognized upon delivery of the energy
or transmission services to the customer.
In order to determine the value of revenue for odefrom the last billing date to the balance shete,

an estimate is made and disclosed in the balaresdt sihder trade and other receivables.

Revenue from the sales of goods and materialscegrézed when the entity has transferred to thebuy

The notes presented on pages 11-99 constituteegrahpart of the consolidated financial staterment
28



ENEA Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements prepared iniitie EU-IFRS for the year ended 31 December 2010

(if not indicated otherwise, all amounts in PLNX)O

the significant risks and rewards of ownership ¢ goods and materials it is probable that the @oin

benefits associated with the transaction will fimithe entity.

Revenue from lease of investment property is reizeghin the income statement according to theditai

line method over the term of the lease.
Interest income is recognized on an accrual basigyuhe effective interest rate if its receipha doubtful.

Dividend income is recognized when the Company imeguhe right to receive the related payments.

3.23. Grants

The Group receives fixed assets constituting panfeastructure free of charge from local self-gaueent
units and other business entities. Until 31 Decen#®9 such transactions were recognized in lingh wi
IAS 20 “Government Grants”, i.e. recognized as prop plant and equipment, and their value was
recognized under deferred income and settled awer in the income statement pro rata to depreciatsts
accrued on the received assets. Since 1 Januafy pQdsuant to IFRIC 18, subsidies and other fiassets

received free of charge are recognized in revemtied full amount.

3.24. Compensation to cover orphaned costs originating @m early termination of long-term power and electrEity

sales contracts (LTC)

Compensation to cover the orphaned costs is rezedrin the income statement as revenue in thegserio

when the related orphaned costs are incurred.

Compensation to cover orphaned costs is recognize¢tle amount of advances due for a given financial
period as determined in Appendix 4 to the Act oim@ples to cover producers’ costs originating frearly
termination of LTC of 29 June 2007 adjusted by atineated adjustment amount for the given period.
the compensation for orphaned costs for the givear yis settled by the President of ERO by 31 July
of the subsequent year and by 31 August followirgglast year of LTC remaining in force.

3.25. Connection fees

Revenue from connection fees for tasks complete@lbypecember 2009 is recognized in deferred income
and settled over the depreciation period of theneotion, at present determined as 35 years. Imdiah
statements prepared in line with IAS, the feesraoegnized under short-term liabilities. At the exfdeach
reporting period, the fees up to one-year matanigyreclassified to short-term liabilities.

Advances for connection fees paid to the Compary 8h December 2009 with connections commissioned
after 1 January 2010 are recognized in full am@umévenue pursuant to IFRIC 18 issued on 1 Jan2@iy

by International Financial Reporting Interpretatommittee.

3.26. Dividend payment

Payments of dividends to shareholders (includingomity shareholders for dividends of subsidiarias®

recognized as a liability in the financial statemseof the Group for the period when they were apgdoby
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the Parent’s shareholders.

3.27. Segment reporting

The business segment is the primary reporting farmausiness segment is a group of assets arititiksb
engaged in providing products and services thasabgect to risks and returns on investments diffefrom
other business segments. There are four busingssesés in the Capital Group:

- trade — sale of electricity to end customers;

- distribution — electricity transmission services;

- production — electricity generation;

- other activities.

The Group operates in one geographical regionplarfél, and therefore it does not distinguish geuigjcal
segments.

3.28. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale include itemsfsatig the following criteria:

- - their carrying amount will be recovered pipally through sale transactions rather than thhoug

continuing use.

- the Management Board of the Company submittedies declaration and started to search actiwely f
a potential buyer;

- the assets are available for immediate satledin current condition;
- the sale transaction is highly probable and meagditled within 12 months of the date of the denis

- the sales price is reasonable compared touttrentt fair value;

- the probability that changes to the asset diapplan will be made is low.

If the aforementioned criteria have been satisté@r the balance sheet date, the asset is naisssfied
at the end of the financial year preceding the evdre classification change is reflected in thmoréing
period when the aforementioned criteria have begisfied. Amortization/depreciation charges ardanger
applied starting from the date when the assetsgydated as held for sale.

Assets held for sale are measured at the lowe¢hefnet carrying amount or the fair value lesscastell.
3.29. Statement regarding application of International Fnancial Reporting Standards

First-time applied in 2010

The following amendments to the existing standamdislished by International Reporting Standards Boar
(IASB) and endorsed by the EU become effectiveOh®

* IFRS 1 (revised) “First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards” approved

in the EU on 25 November 2009 (applicable to anpeaiods starting on or after 1 January 2009);

* IFRS 3 (revised) “Business Combinations” -approved by the EU on 3 June 2009 (applicable tuain
periods starting on or after 1 July 2009);
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* Revised IFRS 1 “First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards” —additional
exemptions for first-time adopters accepted byBEbeon 23 June 2010 (applicable to annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2010);

 Revised IFRS 2 “Share-Based Payments” — group shatmsed payments settled in cashccepted
by the EU on 23 March 2010 (applicable to annuaibpls beginning on or after 1 January 2010);
 Amendments to IAS 27 “Consolidated and separate fancial statements” —approved by the EU

on 3 June 2009 (applicable to annual periods staan or after 1 July 2009);

» Revised IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognitionand Measurement” — eligible hedged items,
endorsed by the EU on 15 September 2009 (applidabnnual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009);

e IFRS (2009) “Improvements to IFRS” —changes introduced within the annual improvemeoteuures,
published on 16 April 2009 (IFRS 2, IFRS 5, IFRSAS 1, IAS 7, IAS 17, IAS 18, IAS 36, IAS 38,
IAS 39, IFRIC 9, IFRIC 16) focused mainly on eliation of discrepancies and on precise wording (most

amendments are applicable to annual periods begjron or after 1 January 2010);

e |IFRIC 12 “Service Concession Arrangements”endorsed by the EU on 25 March 2009 (applicable to

annual periods beginning on or after 30 March 2009)

* |IFRIC 15 “Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate”, endorsed by the EU on 22 July 2009

(applicable to annual periods beginning on or dftdanuary 2010);

* |IFRIC 16 “Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign @eration”, endorsed by the EU on 4 June 2009
(applicable to annual periods beginning on or aftéuly 2009);

e IFRIC 17 “Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owner$, endorsed by the EU on 26 November 2009
(applicable to annual periods beginning on or aftélovember 2009);

The above standards, interpretations and moditidsrds did not materially impact the existingoasting

policy of the Group or the consolidated financiatesments.

 IFRIC Interpretation 18 “Transfers of assets from austomers” - approved by the EU
on 27 November 2009 (applicable to annual periddstisg on or after 1 November 2009). Having
applied the Interpretation, since 1 January 20E0Ghoup has been recognizing revenue from power
infrastructure received free of charge in the amooh PLN 10,693 thousand and revenue from

connection fees of PLN 79,036 thousand in the ircstatement.
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Standards and Interpretations published and approvd for use in the EU, which have not entered into

force yet

While preparing these financial statements, the @y did not apply the following standards
and amendments to standards and interpretationshwhere published and approved for use in the EU,

but which have not entered into force yet:

* Revised IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” simplified disclosure requirements that apply tatest
controlled entities and amendment to the definitba related party, accepted by the EU on 19 2040

(applicable to annual periods beginning on or dftdanuary 2011);

e Amendments to IAS 32 “Financial instruments: presemation” - Classification of rights issues,
approved by the EU on 23 December 2009 (applicebbnnual periods starting on or after 1 February
2010);

» Revised IFRS 1 “First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards” —additional
exemptions for first-time adopters regarding disale of comparative data in accordance with IFRS 7,

accepted by the EU on 30 June 2010 (applicablernioa periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010);

e Amendments to IFRIC 14 “IAS 19 - thelimit on adefned benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interaction” — prepayment of a minimum funding requirement, aceediy
the EU on 19 July 2010 (applicable to annual pergtdrting on or after 1 January 2011);

* IFRS (2010) “Improvements to IFRS” — changes introduced within the annual improvement
procedures, published on 6 May 2010 (IFRS 1, IFRERS 7, IAS 1, IAS 27, IAS 34 and IFRIC 13)
focused mainly on elimination of discrepancies aod precise wording, accepted by the EU
on 18 February 2011 (applicable to annual pericatsinming on or after 1 July 2010 or 1 January 2011
depending on the standard/interpretation);

« |IFRIC Interpretation 19 “Extinguishing financial li abilities with equity instruments” endorsed by
the EU on 23 July 2010 (applicable to annual pexistarting on or after 1 July 2010).

The Capital Group decided not to use the possilulitearlier adoption of the above standards, ammemds to
standards and interpretations. According to theu@ estimates, the aforementioned standards,
interpretations and amendments to standards woold have had a significant effect on the financial

statements, if they had been adopted by the Grewp the balance sheet date.

Standards and Interpretations adopted by IASB but mt endorsed by the EU

At present, the IFRS endorsed by the EU do notedifubstantially from the regulations adopted by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASBxcept for the following standards as well as
amendments to standards and interpretations wiidmbt been adopted for use as of the date of @@a

of these financial statements:
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IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (applicable to annual periods beginning on or dftdanuary 2013);

 Revised IFRS 1 “First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards” — heavy
hyperinflation and removal of fixed deadlines farstrtime adopters (applicable to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2011);

* Revised IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures; transfers of financial assets (applicable to

annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011);

« Revised IAS 12 “Income Tax”’, deferred tax: realization of assets (applicableatmual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2012).

According to the Group’s estimates, the aforemewtib standards, interpretations and amendments to
standards would not have had a significant effecthe financial statements, if they had been adbpte

the Group as of the balance sheet date.

At the same time, hedge accounting principles apple to the portfolio of financial assets andiliibs have

not been endorsed by the European Union.

According to the estimates of the Group, the apfibm of hedge accounting regarding the portfolio
of financial assets and liabilities in line witlAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement would not have material impact on the financi@tements, if they were adopted for use as at
the balance sheet date.

4. Comparability of financial data for the previous peiod with the financial statements for the current
financial period

The consolidated financial statements for the eur@nd previous period have been based on the same
principles. Following presentation changes intradldy the Group in 2010, corresponding changes were
made to presentation of 2009 data. Therefore, fiahndata for the current reporting period are yfull
comparable with the data for the previous period.

In 2010, the Group changed presentation regarditttesent of income from subsidies and connectess f
related to advances (previously recognized as teng-liabilities) and funds received to finance ghase

of fixed assets and fixed assets under construdjweviously recognized as trade and other shont-te
receivables). Presentation changes in the stateafemdmprehensive income included revenue from egen
activities carried out by subsidiaries and in théahce sheet — liabilities of a subsidiary to akb&resented

below are effects of the above changes on 2009 data
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a) Balance sheet changes

Trade and other liabilities — prior to the change

Trade and other liabilities — after the change

Non-current liabilities
- Settlement of income due to subsidies and coiorefges — prior to the change
Non-current liabilities

- Settlement of income due to subsidies and coiorefges — after the change

Current liabilities
- Settlement of income due to subsidies and corforefges — prior to the change
- Settlement of income due to subsidies and coiforefges — after the change
- Credit facilities and loans — prior to the change

-Credit facilities and loans — after the change

b) Changes in the statement of comprehensive income

Net sales revenue — prior to the change

Net sales revenue — after the change

Consumption of materials and raw materials andsaoisgoods sold — prior to the change

Consumption of materials and raw materials andsocofsgoods sold — after the change

Other external services — prior to the change
Other external services — after the change

c) Cash flow changes

Trade and other liabilities — prior to the change

Trade and other liabilities — after the change

Settlement of income from subsidies and conned&en — prior to the change

Settlement of income from subsidies and connedten — after the change

991 482
971 962

791 296

747 117

41 856

102 213

46 609
49 951

7167 337
7 183 50

(1 585 889)
(1573 232)

(333 169)
31 (D8)

79 005
62 827

27 873
44 051
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5. Material estimates and assumptions

The preparation of these financial statements tom@ance with EU-IFRS requires that the Management
Board makes certain estimates and assumptionsaffezt the adopted accounting policies and the amsou
disclosed in the consolidated financial statemantsnotes thereto. the adopted assumptions amdagss are
based on the Management Board’s best knowledgkeofurrent and future activities and events. thieahc

figures, however, can be different from those asslim

The key areas in which the estimates made by thealyament Board have a material impact on the fiahnc

statements include:

= employment and post-employment benefits — phevisions for employee benefits are measured using
a method which involves determination of the opgniralance of liabilities due to expected future
benefit payments as at the balance sheet dateylat®id in line with actuarial methods; changes

in he discount rate and the long-term pay rise affect the accuracy of the estimate made (Note 28)

= impairment losses on trade and other receivablebeir value is determined as the difference between
the carrying amount and the present value of estidnfuture cash flows, discounted using the origina
interest rate; a change in the value of estimatgdré cash flows shall cause a change in estimated

impairment losses on receivables (note 14);

= unbilled sales revenue at the end of the financiedar —the value of unbilled energy sales is estimated
based on the estimated consumption of electricitthe period from the last meter reading date until

the end of the financial period (Note 14);

= economic useful lives — theemaining useful life of fixed assets is estimabeged on the currently
available information on the expected useful lif@@iven asset, subject to periodic review in livith

the binding legal regulations (Note 8);

= compensation for non-contractual use of propertythe potential payment of compensation for the so
called non-contractual use of land and rental $eestimated by the technical staff of the Groupedas

on analyses of claims filed on a case-by-base fisite 30 and 47.4);

= provision for land reclamation Elektrownia "Kozienice" S.A., having filled or cled a slag and ash
dump, is obliged to reclaim the land. As the conyphas large unfilled dumps, land reclamation is
planned for 2060. Future estimated costs of lacthmeation were discounted to their current value as
at 31 December 2010, using a 5.77% discount radéee(BO);
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provision for costs of disposing or dumping of asimd slag mix —in the coal combustion process,
Elektrownia "Kozienice" S.A. produces two types wfaste: ash and ash and slag mixture.
As he company incurs costs related to mixture diapoit creates an appropriate provision. Future
estimated costs of disposing or dumping ash argl sliature were discounted to their current value
as at 31 December 2010, using a 5.77% discoun{mate 30);

share-based payment — tl@&oup recognizes the services provided under egeityed share-based
payments (performance of work) and the correspaniticrease in equity upon their receipt. As the fai
value of he services provided by employees maybsotdetermined directly, it is estimated based
on the fair value of equity instruments granted. &#8s31 December 2009, the Management Board
decided that the value of the employee stock ovimieslan would no longer be subject to revaluation
(Note 24);

compensation to cover orphaned cosisiginating from early termination of LTC are recized
in the amount of advances due for the given pegididsted by an estimated adjustment amount to be
calculated by the President of ERO and dependiran wpnumber of factors, including in particular

performance of the generator, sales volume anchgeanarket price of electricity (note 42).

6. Composition of the Capital Group - list of subsidiaies, associates and jointly-controlled entities

Share of ENEA Share of ENEA
No S.A. S.A.
Name and address of the Company in the total number | in the total number
of votes of votes
31.12.2010 31.12.2009
ENERGOMIAR Sp. z o.0.
L Poznai, ul Strzeszjska 58 100 100
BHU S.A.
2. Poznai, ul. Strzesziska 58 91.47 87.97
3 Energetyka Pozmaka Biuro Ustug Technicznych S.A. 100 100
" | Poznai, ul. Sw. Wojciecha 7/9
4 Hotel ,EDISON Sp._z 0.0. 100 100
Baranowo k/Poznania
Energetyka Wysokich i Najwgzych Napic¢
5. | “EWINN" Sp. z o.0. - 100
Poznai, ul. Strzesziska 58
Energetyka Pozmaka Zaktad Transportu Sp. z 0.0.
6. Poznai, ul. Strzesziska 58 100 100
COGEN Sp. z 0.0.
7| Pita, ul.Kaczorska 20 i 100
8 EnergoPartner Sp. z o.0. ) 100
" | Poznai, ul. Warszawska 43
Energetyka Pozmaka Przedsgbiorstwo Ustug Energetycznych
9. | Energobud Leszno Sp. z o.0. 100 100
Lipno, Gronéwko 30
ENERGO-TOUR Sp. z 0.0.
10. Poznai, ul. Marcinkowskiego 27 99.92 99.92
ENEOS Sp. z 0.0.
11. Poznai, ul. Strzesziska 58 100 100
ENTUR Sp. z 0.0.
12. Szczecin, ul. Malczewskiego 5/7 100 100
Niepubliczny Zaktad Opieki Zdrowotnej Centrum Uzdiskowe
13.| ENERGETYK Sp. z 0.0. 99.94 99.94
Inowroctaw, ul. Wilkd@skiego 2
Elektrownie Wodne Sp. z o.0.
14. Samoaizek, 86-010 Koronowo 100 100
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Zaktad Ustug Przewozowych ENERGOTRANS Sp. z 0.0.

Bialystok, ul. Gen. Andersa 3

151 Gorzow WIkp., ul. Energetykow 4 ) 100
“PWE Gubin” Sp. z 0.0.

16. Sckowice 100 gm. Gubin ) 50
Przedstbiorstwo Energetyki Cieplnej Sp. z o.0.

17-1 Oboriki, ul. Wybudowanie 56 87.99 87.99
JTSERWIS” Sp. z 0.0.

18. Zielona Gora, ul. Zacisze 28 100 100
“Auto — Styl” Sp. z 0.0.

19. Zielona Gora, ul. Zacisze 15 100 100
FINEA Sp. z 0.0. in liquidation

20. Poznai, ul.Warszawska 43 100 100

21 Przedsgbiorstwo Energetyki Ciepinej - Gozdnica Sp. z 0.0. ) 100

' | Gozdnica, ulSwierczewskiego 30

ENEA Operator Sp. z 0.0.

22. Poznai, ul. Strzesziska 58 100 100
Elektrownia "Kozienice" S.A.

28. Swierze Gorne, gmina Kozienice, Kozienice 1 100 100
Miejska Energetyka Cieplna Pita Sp. z 0.0.

24. 64-920 Pita, ul. Kaczorska 20 64.064 63.396
Kozienice Il Sp. z 0.0.

25. Swierze Gorne, gmina Kozienice, Kozienice 1 100 100
Przedstbiorstwo Produkciji Strunobetonowy@erdzi Wirowanych

26. | WIRBET S.A. 49 49
Ostrow WIkp., ul. Chtapowskiego 51

27 Erzedszblorstwp Energetyki Cieplnej Wremie S.A. 4165 4165
Srem, ul. Staszica 6

o8, Elektrocieptownia Biatystok S.A. 30.36 30.36

29 ELKO Trading Sp. z o.0.
" | Swierze Gérne, gmina Kozienice, Kozienice 1

*100% of shares in ELKO Trading Sp. z o.0. is hgycElektrownia ,Kozienice” S.A.

The notes presented on pages 11-99 constituteegrahpart of the consolidated financial staterment
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Changes in the Capital Group structure in the perid covered by the consolidated financial statements

On 28 January 2010, the Extraordinary Shareholdéegting adopted Resolution No. 1 to increase liages
capital of ENTUR Sp. z 0.0. up to PLN 4,134.5 thand; i.e. by PLN 100 thousand by way of issuing 200
new shares with the face value of PLN 500 eachnéve shares in the Company’s share capital wereirch

by ENEA S.A. for a contribution in cash. the in@ed share capital was registered in the NationairtCo
Register on 3 March 2010.

On 4 February 2010 the Extraordinary Shareholddegting adopted Resolution No. 1 to increase tlaeesh
capital of Niepubliczny Zaktad Opieki Zdrowotnej i@aum Uzdrowiskowe ENERGETYK Sp. z 0. 0. by
PLN 1,710 thousand to PLN 17,448 thousand by wayssiing 3,420 new shares with the face value
of PLN 500 each. the new shares in the Companyaresttapital were acquired by ENEA S.A. for
a contribution in cash. the increased share capited registered in the National Court Register oAp8il
2010.

On 22 December 2009 and on 2 February 2010 thedixtinary Shareholders’ Meeting adopted Resolutions
to increase the share capital of BHU S.A. withrégistered office in Pozhaup to PLN 14,302.5 thousand,
i.e. by PLN 4,164.1 thousand by way of issuing 41,6ew shares with the face value of PLN 100 each.
On 5 May 2010 the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Megthf BHU S.A. with its registered office in Pozna
decided to revoke the resolution of 22 Decembe®2iiDincreasing the share capital of the Companydy

of issuing J series shares due to the inabilitynget the deadline for contributing a real propéoiyated

in Gorzow Wielkopolski to cover the shares issugdnsequently, on 8 June 2010 the share capitadaser

by PLN 3,923.8 thousand from PLN 10,138.4 thousaodPLN 14,062.2 thousand was recorded
in the National Court Register. the new shares vwarguired by ENEA S.A. for a contribution in cash

and a contribution in kind.

On 22 December 2009, the Extraordinary Sharehdlddesting adopted Resolution No. 1 to increase
the share capital of ENERGOBUD Leszno Sp. z o.th ws registered office in Gronéwko up to PLN 567
thousand, i.e. by PLN 2,151.5 thousand by way sidirgy 4,303 new shares with the face value of PDN 5
each. the new shares in the Company’s share cagtal acquired by ENEA S.A. for a contribution iimdk

the increased share capital was registered in gti@ial Court Register on 2 April 2010.

On 29 June 2010, the Extraordinary Shareholderstivig adopted Resolution No. 1 to increase theeshar
capital of ENERGOBUD Leszno Sp. z 0.0. with itsiségred office in Gronéwko up to PLN 6,216 thousand
i.e. by PLN 540 thousand by way of issuing 1,08@ sbares with the face value of PLN 500 each. #we n
shares in the Company’s share capital were acqbyeENEA S.A. for a contribution in kind. the inaised
share capital was registered in the National CRedister on 20 August 2010.

Pursuant to a Resolution of 15 December 2009, thedgement Board of ENEA S.A. agreed to sell
the shares in PWE Gubin Sp. z 0.0. with its registeffice in Skowice held by ENEA S.A.. the shares were
sold based on the agreement on the sale of shiz®eSabruary 2010.

The notes presented on pages 11-99 constituteegrahpart of the consolidated financial staterment
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On 19 April 2010 the Extraordinary Shareholders’ eflieg adopted a resolution on putting Energetyka
Poznaska Biuro Ustug Technicznych S. A. into liquidatias of 1 May 2010. Mr. Jacek Palka appointed

as Chairman of the Management Board assumed tleedarof the official receiver.

On 11 June 2010 the Extraordinary Shareholders'tiMgealecided to put Finea Sp. z 0. o. into liquiciat

Ms. Katarzyna Mikowska was appointed the official receiver.

On 12 April 2010, the Extraordinary Shareholdergdding adopted Resolution to increase the shariéatap
of ENEOS Sp. z 0.0. up to PLN 20,189.5 thousaed by PLN 630.5 thousand, by way of issuing 1,2é% n
shares with the face value of PLN 500 each. the steaves in the Company’s share capital were aatjbiye
ENEA S.A. for a contribution in kind. the increas&thre capital was registered in the National CBedister
on 15 September 2010.

On 1 July 2010, two subsidiaries of ENEA S. A. wemmbined: Elektrownie Wodne Sp. z 0. 0. with its
registered office in Samagiek (the acquirer) and EnergoPartner Sp. z o. oh W registered office

in Pozna (the acquiree). As a result of the business coatigin, a new entity was established under the name
of Elektrownie Wodne Sp. z o0.0. with its registereffice in Samocizek. As aresult of the business
combination, the share capital of the acquirer ekEbwnie Wodne Sp. z 0.0. with its registered aeffi

in Samocizek was increased by PLN 8,821 thousand up to PL}821 thousand and divided into 427,682

shares with the face value of PLN 500 each.

On 8 October 2010 the Extraordinary Shareholdergefihg of Energetyka Pozska Biuro Uslug
Technicznych S.A. adopted a Resolution on the saerof the liquidation and further existence

of the Company.

An auction for the sale of shares in the sharetabpf ITSERWIS Sp. z 0. 0. in Zielona Géra was@nmced
on 15 October 2010. the offer covered 12,728 sharesh accounted for 100% of the share capital
of the Company, for the starting price of PLN 9,88&. the auction was held on 15 December 2010
in the registered office of the Management BoaréENEA S.A. and no buyer was indicated as investids

not enter the auction. This way ENEA S.A. remaittedholder of the shares.

On 29 October 2010 the Extraordinary Shareholddteeting discussed the combination of subsidiaries
of ENEA S. A.: Energetyka Pozfiska Przedgbiorstwo Ustug Energetycznych ENERGOBUD Leszno Sp.
0. 0. (the acquirer) and Zaklad Ustug Przewozowg®ERGOTRANS Sp. z 0. 0. and EWINN Sp. z 0.0.
(the acquirees) by transfer of all the assets efattyuirees to the acquireds aresult of the business
combination, the share capital of ENERGOBUD Les3poz 0.0. was increased by PLN 1,418 thousand.

On 1 December 2010 the increased share capitalNERESOBUD Leszno Sp. z 0.0., which following
the combination was PLN 7,634 thousand and waslelivinto 15,201 shares with a face value of PLN 500

each was registered. 67 shares were redeemed &bpnafit.
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On 29 October 2010, the Extraordinary Meeting oft BELA. adopted Resolution to increase the sharitatap
of the Company by PLN 240,9 thousand, up to PLN3@3,1 thousand, by way of issuing 2,409 J series
shares, by a private placement, in exchange fonaibution in kind.

The increased share capital of BHU S.A. was regdten the National Court Register on 28 Decemif®di02

On 4 November 2010 during the Extraordinary Shddshie’ Meeting of Energetyka Poziska Biuro Ustug
Technicznych S.A., the share capital of the compamas increased from PLN 1,973.7 thousand, by
PLN 2,054.3 thousand, i.e. to PLN 4,028 thousandrbissue of 20,543 ordinary registered shareleoface
value of PLN 100 and issue price of PLN 608.23.0ffer for Assumption of all 20,543 shares was gent
Elektrownia ,Kozienice” S.A. with its registered fiok in Swierze Gorne as part of private placement.
By the deadline of the offer, Energetyka Paomka Biuro Ustug Technicznych S.A. had not received
a statement from Elektrownia ,Kozienice” S.A. comiag acceptance of the offer.

As the share capital increase of Energetyka HskaaBiuro Ustug Technicznych S.A. was not effected,
on 22 December 2010 during another Extraordinagré&tolders’ Meeting of Energetyka Poasiea Biuro
Ustug Technicznych S.A., the share capital of tiegany was increased from PLN 1,973.7 thousand, by
PLN 2,054.3 thousand, i.e. to PLN 4,028 thousandrbissue of 20,543 ordinary registered shareleoface
value of PLN 100 and issue price of PLN 608.23.c4fer for assumption of all 20,543 shares - validilu

31 January 2011 - was sent to Elektrownia ,KoziehB.A. with its registered office iSwierze Gorne as part
of private placement. Following and audit of End¢yga Poznaska Biuro Ustug Technicznych S.A.,
Elektrownia ,Kozienice” S.A. filed a statement tharefused the offer of assumption of 20,543 ndares

in the increased capital of the Company.

On 8 November 2010 during the Extraordinary Shddshre’ Meeting of Elektrownie Wodne Sp. z o. o,
the share capital of the company was increased Rbih 213,841 thousand, by PLN 26,000 thousandta.e.
PLN 239,841 thousand by creation of 52,000 neweshaf the face value of PLN 500 each. On 1 December
2010 all new shares in the Company’s share capitak assumed by the sole shareholder - ENEA S.A.
and covered in full by a contribution in kind iretform of an organized part of the enterprise 0EBNS.A.
operating under the business name: ENEA S.A. Otdektrownia Biogazowa Liszkowo. the increased
share capital of Elektrownie Wodne Sp. z o0.0. waggstered in the National Court Register on 7 Fatyru
2011.

On 30 November 2010, subsidiaries of ENEA S. A.eveombined by acquisition: MEC Pita Sp. z 0. o.
(the acquirer) and PEC Gozdnica Sp. z 0. 0 and QOSJE z 0. 0. (the acquirees).

As a result, the share capital of the acquirer inaseased by PLN 509 thousand to PLN 27,916 thalisan
All the shares in the increased share capital wegeired by — ENEA S.A.

On 27 December 2010, the Extraordinary Meeting BfUBS.A. adopted Resolution to increase the share
capital of the Company by PLN 2,072 thousand, upltdl 16,375.1 thousand, by way of issuing 20,720 K
series shares, by a private placement. the neveslirathe Company’s share capital were acquireBNEA
S.A. for a contribution in kind.

The increased share capital of BHU S.A. was reggdten the National Court Register on 21 Januaty120
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On 30 December 2010 the Extraordinary Shareholdéegting decided to increase the share capital BEM
Pita Sp. z 0.0. by PLN 773 thousand up to PLN 28,8®usand, by way of creating 773 new shares with
the face value of PLN 1,000 each. the new shardhdrshare capital will be acquired by ENEA S.A: fo
a contribution in kind. the increased share captaVlEC Pita Sp. z 0.0. was registered in the N&ldCourt
Register on 24 February 2011.

On 15 October 2010 the Management Board of Elekir@iKozienice" S.A. adopted a resolution to esdbl
anew company ELKO Trading Spotka z 0.0. with igistered office irSwierze Gorne with the capital
of PLN 33,000 thousand, comprising share capitalPeN 13,500 thousand and supplementary capital
of PLN 19,500 thousand.

Elektrownia "Kozienice" S.A. assumed 100% of shqde5500) of the face value of PLN 1,000 each. Both

the share and supplementary capital were paidsih.ca

ELKO Trading Sp. z 0.0. was incorporated on 21 ©®eta2010 by a notarized deed, Rep. a Nr 4514/2010.

Its business includes trade in electricity and gnéuels.

The notes presented on pages 11-99 constituteegrahpart of the consolidated financial staterment
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7. Segment reporting

Key reporting: industry segments

Segment reporting for the period from 1 Januarit@®ecember 2010:

Net sales revenue
Inter-segment sales

Total net sales revenue
Total expenses

Segment profit/loss

Unassigned Group costs (general and administraiipenses)

Operating profit

Financial expenses

Financial revenue

Dividend income

Net profit sharing/loss coverage in associatediesti
Income tax %

Net profit

Share in minority interest profit

Segment reporting for the period from 1 Januargit@®ecember 2009:

Net sales revenue
Inter-segment sales

Total net sales revenue
Total expenses

Segment profit/loss

Unassigned Group costs (general and administrapenses)

Operating profit

Financial expenses

Financial revenue

Dividend income

Net profit sharing/loss coverage in associatediesti
Income tax %

Net profit

Share in minority interest profit

Trade Distribution Production All other Exclusions TOTAL
segments
4021 458 2527923 1024 432 263 062 7 836 87¢
332 399 1504517 507 843 (2 344 759) -
4 353 857 2527923 2 528 949 770 905 (2344 759) 7836 87t
(4 144 574) (2 264 396) (2 215 331) (729 501) 2 329 236 (7 024 566)
209 283 263 527 313618 41 404 (15 523) 812 30¢
(100 345)
711 964
(41 003)
140 49:
774
988
(173 835)
639 381
119
Trade Distribution Production All other Exclusions TOTAL
segments
4489 714 2 301 447 7 215 355 133 - 7153 50¢
385 106 - 2370942 412 219 (3 168 267) -
4 874 820 2 301 447 2 378 157 767 352 (3168 267) 7 153 50¢
(4 639 360) (2 160 692) (2 162 632) (737 540) 3113 757 (6 586 467)
235 460 140 755 215525 29 812 (54 510) 567 04z
(61 437)
505 60¢
(33 020)
170 37(
2335
7 766
(139 446)
513 61(
21
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Key reporting: industry segments (cont.)

Other segment reporting information as at 31 De@r8610 and for the 12-month period ended as atdta:

Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables

TOTAL

ASSETS excluded from segmentation

- including property, plant and equipment
- including trade and other receivalt

TOTAL: ASSETS

Trade and other liabilities
Equity and liabilities excluded from segmentation

- including trade and other liabilities

TOTAL: EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital expenditure for fixed assets and intanggisieets
Capital expenditure for fixed assets and intanggsigets excluded fro

seamentatic

Amortization / depreciation
Amortization/depreciation excluded from segmentatio
Impairment loss for receivables as of 31.12.2010

All other

Trade Distribution Production Exclusions TOTAL
segments
18 746 4862914 2 874 885 350 681 (93 663) 8013563
463 869 332 995 241 263 201 648 (327 554) 912 221
482 615 5195 909 3116 148 552 329 (421 217) 8925 784
3910921
295 087
10 40
12 836 705
359 389 434 131 314518 154 808 (327 554) 935 292
11 901 413
82515
12 836 705
- 506 275 420513 76 984 (27 734) 976 038
66 206
610 360 890 252 311 34 010 (3132) 644 689
7 983
81578 12 271 55 840 5908 - 155 597

The notes on pages 11-99 constitute an integrabpéne consolidated financial statements
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Key reporting: industry segments (cont.)

Other segment reporting information as at 31 De@r8609 and for the 12-month period ended as atdta:

Property, plant and equipment

Trade and other receivables

TOTAL

ASSETS excluded from segmentation

- including propoerty, palnt and equipment

- including trade and other receivables

TOTAL: ASSETS

Trade and other liabilities

Equity and liabilities excluded from segmentation

- including trade and other liabilities

TOTAL: EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital expenditure for fixed assets and intangisigets
Capital expenditure for fixed assets and intangisigets excluded from segmentation
Amortization / depreciation

Amortization / depreciation excluded from segmeatat
Imapirment loss for receivables as of 31.12.2010

All other

Trade Distribution  Production segments Exclusions TOTAL
19 609 4724365 2832857 340 394 (68 090) 7849 135
528 425 355 886 268 461 157 840 (389 342) 921 270
548 034 5080251 3101318 498 234 (457 432) 8 770 405
3459 283
211539
5573
12 229 688
426 258 388 363 289 852 140 999 (389 342) 856 130
11 373 558
115 890
12 229 688
- 412 015 302 369 80 009 (32 352) 762 041
70 688
353 345 190 246 344 59 964 3381 655 232
6113
81976 8971 53916 5769 - 150 632
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Segment revenue is generated from sales to exteliaats and transactions with other segments, hvhie
directly attributable to a given segment with &weint portion of the Group’s revenue that may laswoaably

attributed to a given segment.

Segment costs include costs of goods sold to esdtedients and costs of transactions with other upro
segments, which result from operations of a givegntent and may be directly allocated to a givermesty

with a relevant portion of the Group’s costs thatyrbe reasonably allocated to a given segment.

Market prices are used in inter-segment transagtiavhich allow individual entities to earn a margin
sufficient to carry out independent operationsrttegket. Prices specified in the Energy Law of 10ilA1997

and the related secondary legislation apply toetiacelectricity and provision of transmission seeg.

Supplementary reporting - geographical segments

The Group operates in one geographical regionplarfél, and therefore it does not distinguish geuigjcal

segments.

The notes presented on pages 11-99 constituteegrah part of the consolidated financial statersent
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8. Property, plant and equipment

Buildingsand | echnical . Other fixed Fixed assets
Land equipment and Vehicles under Total
structures . assets .
machines construction
Balance as of 1 January 2010
Gross value 33277 6 597 205 4 307 300 117 319 378811 455 298 17889
Accumulated depreciation - (2 065 785) (1 457 910) (49 132) (238 983) - (3811)810
Impairment loss - (4 314) (4 815) (12) (69) (7 517) (16 726)
Net book value 33277 4527 106 2 844 575 68 176 139 759 447 781 8 060 6
2010
Reclassifications - 38 245 109 953 742 2 364 (164 774) (13 470)
Acquisition 3140 333010 193 560 20 029 20 448 358 766 928 953
Disposal (gross valu (521) (17 360) (23 562) (2 093) (1322) (2 393) (47 251)
Disposal (accumulated depreciation) - 740 10 221 1704 1052 - 13717
Amortization - (324 807) (276 783) (8 366) (21 541) - (631 497)
Impairment loss - 3904 4 436 (11) 49 1575 9953
Settlement of acquisition of subsidiaries (grodsep - - - - - -
Settlement of acquisition of subsidiaries (accurneal
depreciation) 741 (2 533) 22 (6) - (1 776)
Liquidation (gross value) 2) (25 826) (82 613) (872) (3771) - (113 084)
Liguidation (accumulated depreciation - 11992 76 504 223 3399 - 92 118
Other (gross value) (48) 14 425 (1 158) 350 (493) (9 850) 3226
Other (accumulated depreciation - 1438 3299 260 1153 937 7 087
Balance as at 31 December 2010
Gross value 35 846 6 939 699 4503 480 135475 396 037 637 047 15847
Accumulated depreciation - (2 375 681) (1 647 202) (55 289) (254 926) 937 (43821
Impairment loss - (410) (379) (22) (20) (5942) (6 773)
Net book value 35 846 4 563 608 2 855 899 80 164 141 091 632 042 83086
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Buildings and Tgchnlcal . Other fixed Fixed asset:
Land equipment and Vehicles under Total
structures . assets .
machines construction
Balance as of 1 January 2009
Gross value 29 596 6 322 220 4135 483 102 909 360 048 204 289 15454
Accumulated amortization - (1741 248) (1191 243) (42 640) (226 815) - (3 201)946
Impairment loss - (3901) (3 809) 9) (65) - (7 784)
Net book value 29 596 4577 071 2940 431 60 260 133 168 204 289 79848
Changes in the 12-month period ended 31 December(@D
Reclassifications - 36 448 92 798 516 1132 (136 257) (5 363)
Acquisition 4151 293 666 96 663 16 556 21 249 391 098 823 383
Disposal (gross value) (450) (8 843) (2 915) (2 783) (1332) - (16 323)
Disposal (accumulated depreciation) - 2152 2087 2615 1282 - 8 136
Amortization - (334 406) (277 231) (9 264) (16 734) - (637 635)
Impairment loss - (413) (1 006) 2) (4) (7 517) (8942)
Settlement of acquisition of subsidiaries (grodsejp - (39 307) (5 121) (309) (69) (290) (45 096)
Settlement of acquisition of subsidiaries (accunaal
depreciation) - 599 870 23 17 - 1509
Liquidation (gross value) - (14 515) (8 354) (252) (3198) - (26 319)
Liquidation (accumulated depreciation) - 7 296 6 822 184 3027 - 17 329
Other (gross value) (20) 7 536 (1 254) 682 981 (3542) 4 383
Other (accumulated depreciation) - (178) 785 (50) 240 - 797
Balance as of 31 December 2009 -
Gross valu 33277 6 597 205 4 307 300 117 319 378 811 455 298 17889
Accumulated depreciation - (2 065 785) (1 457 910) (49 132) (238 983) - (3 811)810
Impairment loss - (4 314) (4 815) (11) (69) (7 517) (16 726)
Net book value 33277 4527 106 2 844 575 68 176 139 759 447 781 80806
Collateral established on the Group's propertyytpdad equipment is disclosed in note 15.
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Impairment test (property, plant and equipment)

Property, plant and equipment related to distrdyutivas last tested for impairment on 31 Decemb@820
the test did not reveal any impairment of propeplant and equipment related to distribution as3f
December 2008.

As of 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2010 there mo reasons to carry out another impairmenbfest

property, plant and equipment related to distriduti

Finance leases

The Group uses the following property, plant andigaent under finance leases:

31.12.2010 31.12.2009
Accumulated Net carrying Accumulated Net carrying
Gross value o Gross value L
depreciation amount depreciation amount
Technical equipment and machines 78 (78) - 256 (238) 18
Vehicles 5879 (1 239) 4640 5834 (1 064) 477C
TOTAL 5 957 (1317) 4 640 6 090 (1302) 4788

The Group does not enter into finance lease agnetsmas a financing party.

9. Land perpetual usufruct right

31.12.2010 31.12.2009
Gross value opening balance 29 623 16 238
Acquisition 3678 6 723
Settlement of acquisition of subsidiaries - 7013
Disposal (gross value) (2 063) (351)
Liguidation (gross value) 3) -
Gross value closing balance 31 235 29 623
Opening balance of depreciation (1533) (917)
Disposal (accumulated depreciation) 21 118
Liguidation (accumulated depreciation) (4) -
Accumulated depreciation for the period (511) (734)
Closing balance of depreciation (2 027) (1533)
Opening balance of impairment loss - -
Closing balance of impairment loss - -
Net value opening balance 28 090 15321
Net value closing balance 29 208 28 090

The notes presented on pages 11-99 constituteegrah part of the consolidated financial statersent
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10. Intangible assets

Computer software, CO2 emission
2010 R&D expenses Goodwill licences, concessions . Total
rights
and patents
Balance as of 1 January 2010
Gross value 219 19 069 131 066 15 800 166 154
Accumulated amortization (210) - (97 131) (3950) (101 291)
Impairment loss - (16 878) - - (16 878)
Net value 9 2191 33935 11 850 47 985
Changes in the 12-month period ended 31 Decemt
2009
Reclassifications 16 - 4186 - 4202
Acquisition - 780 11761 100 750 113291
Disposal (gross value) - (668) (2202) - (2 870)
Disposal (accumulated amortization) - - 385 - 385
Amortization 3) (498) (15 863) (906) (17 270)
Impairment loss - - (109) 906 797
Settlement of acquisition of subsidiaries (grosse)a - - - - -
Settlement of acquisition of subsidiaries (accuted
depreciation) - - 43 (3 950) (3907)
Liquidation (gross value) - - (100) - (100)
Liquidation (accumulated amortization) - - 1862 - 1862
Other (gross value) 2 668 37 - 633
Other (accumulated amortization - - 133 - 133
Balance as at 31 December 2010
Gross value 237 19 849 144 674 116 550 281310
Accumulated amortization (213) (498) (110571) (8 806) (120 088)
Impairment loss - (16 878) (109) 906 (16 081)
Net book valug 24 2473 33994 108 650 145141
Computer software,
2009 R&D expenses Goodwill licences, concessior CO2 emission rights Total
and patents
Balance as of 1 January 2009
Gross value 212 385 115 280 - 115 877
Accumulated amortization (193) - (79 133) - (79 326)
Impairment loss - - 55 - 55
Net value 19 385 36 202 - 36 606
Changes in the 12-month period ended 31 December(ZD
Reclassifications 5 - 3156 - 3161
Acquisition - - 9346 - 9 346
Disposal (gross value) - - (759) - (759)
Disposal (accumulated amortization) - - 603 - 603
Amortization 17) - (18 616) - (18 633)
Impairment loss - - (55) - (55)
Settlement of acquisition of subsidiar
(gross value) - 18 684 (136) 15 800 34348
Settlement of acquisition of subsidiar
(accumulated amortization) - (16 878) 49 (3 950) (20 779)
Liquidation (gross value) - - (487) - (487)
Liquidation (accumulated amortization) - - 487 - 487
Other (gross value) 2 - 4 666 - 4 668
Other (accumulated amortization) - - (521) - (521)
Balance as of 31 December 2009
Gross valu 219 19 069 131 066 15 800 166 154
Accumulated amortization (210) - (97 131) (3 950) (101 291)
Impairment loss - (16 878) - - (16 878)
Net book value 9 2191 33935 11 850 47 985

No collateral has been established on intangildetas
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11. Investment property

31.12.2010 31.12.2009

Gross value opening balance 6 736 5711
Acquisition 81 163
Reclassification from / to property, plant and ¢goént 3167 862
Gross value closing balance 9984 6 736
Opening balance of depreciation (645) (677)
Acquisition - 3)
Disposal (accumulated depreciation) - 217
Accumulated depreciation for the period (262) (182)
Closing balance of depreciation (907) (645)
Opening balance of impairment loss -
Closing balance of impairment loss (874)
Net value opening balance 6 091 5034
Net value closing balance 8 203 6 091
No collateral has been established on investmenuguty.
12. Investments in associates and jointly-controlled dities

31.12.2010 31.12.2009
Opening balanc 189 938 189 941
Share in the changed balance of net a 702 5 366
Acquisition of investmen 3000 5500
Reclassification to non-current assets held fa - (5044
Impairment los (7 959) (900)
Depreciation of the surplus of fair value of nedets over book value (15 461) (4 925)
Closing balance 170 22( 189 93¢

The item includes advance payments of PLN 3,00@ighod made to ensure exclusivity in negotiations
concerning purchase of shares in wind farms fromergetyka Wiatrowa Galicja Sp. z 0.0. In exchange
the company pledged the shares in 2 most advanded farms: Farma Wiatrowa ihaut Sp. z 0. o.

and Farma Wiatrowa @&5p. z 0. 0.

As of 31 December 2010, following verification cddies and an impairment test of the shares in thnbiced
heat and power plants which are associates (Pebéaisitwo Energetyki Cieplnej wSremie S.A.
and Elektrocieptownia Biatystok S.A.), the Group pmired the shares in Przegsbrstwo Energetyki
Cieplnej wSremie S.A. by PLN 7,959 thousand.

In 2010 the Company disposed of shares in a joetuhtrolled entity - PWE Gubin Sp. z 0. o. (as of

31 December 2009 the above shares were disclosedsurrent assets held for sale”). the relateth gvas
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PLN 545 thousand.

The share in the net profit/loss of associatesjaintly controlled entities consolidated in linettvithe equity
method for 2010 amounted to PLN 988 thousand (PM& thousand for 2009).
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The following table presents the key financial dagarding associates and jointly controlled eegtittonsolidated in line with the equity method.

Wirbet S.A. (associate)

Przedstbiorstwo Energetyki Cieplne|
w Sremie S.A. (associate)

Elektrocieptownia Biatystok S.A.

(associate)

Wirbet S.A.

Przedsibiorstwo Energetyki Cieping]
w Sremie S.A. (associate)

Elektrocieptownia Biatystok S.A.

(associate)

PWE Gubin Sp. z o.0. (jointly

31.12.2010

31.12.2009

(associate)

controlled entity)

Interest
in the Non-
share Current current Total Current Non-current Total Net
capital assets assets assets liabilities liabilities liabilities Revenue Expenses profit
49,00% 8 380 8 595 16 975 4 602 351 4 953 27184 (24548) 2636
41,65% 2303 42 626 44 929 27 726 - 27 726 11429 (11 236) 193
30,36% 108 166 390659 498 825 28 054 - 28054 269445 (221320) 48125
118 849 441880 560 729 60 382 351 60 733 308058 (257 104) 50954
Interest
in the Non-
share Current current Total Current Non-current Total Net
capital assets assets assets liabilities liabilities liabilities Revenue Expenses profit
49,00% 9441 8 895 18 336 5401 849 6 250 29347 (26654) 2693
41,65% 10 803 7928 18731 1382 - 1382 9 616 (9 246) 370
30,36% 101674 388201 489875 20970 - 20970 281342 (234381) 46961
50,00% 10 242 3 10 245 156 - 156 317 (2018) (1701)
132 160 405027 537 187 27 909 849 28758 320622 (272299) 48323
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13. Financial assets

31.12.2010 31.12.2009

Non-current financial assets available for saleifsh in unrelated parties) 74 867 39 346
Non-current financial assets held to maturity - -
Non-current financial assets measured at fair vildtaugh profit or loss 1411 1219
Total long-term financial assets 76 278 40 565
Current financial assets available for sale - -
Current financial assets held to maturity 250 934 55 734
Current financial assets measured at fair valusutyin profit or loss 1781939 1652 523
Total current financial assets 2032873 1708 257
TOTAL 2109 151 1748 822
14. Trade and other receivables

31.12.201 31.12.200

Current trade and other receivable:
Trade receivable

Tax receivables (excluding income tax) and otheilar benefit:

Other receivable

Advance payment
Receivables due to unbilled se
Prepaid property insurar

Less: impairment loss on receivalt

Net current trade and other receivables

Non-current trade and other receivable
Non-current trade receivab

Other receivable

Net non-current trade and other receivable

Total net trade and other receivable

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables:

Opening balance of impairment loss on receivabl
Recognize

Reverse

Assignel

Closing balance of impairment loss on receivabl

Collateral and encumbrances established on

Carrying amount Carrying amount

760 710 742 126
11 450 26 110

51434 46 658

3061 2 063

249 067 240 780

2335 18 408

1078 05 1076 14!

(155 597) (150 632)

922 460 925 513

31.12.201 31.12.200

Carrying amount Carrying amount

- 1131
168 199
16¢ 1 33(
922 62¢ 926 84:
31.12.2010 31.12.2009

150 63: 124 23.

27 869 63 641

(22 427) (31 462)

(477) (5 779)
155 59’ 150 63:

thep@roweceivables are disclosed in note 15.
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15. Encumbrances and collateral established on the Grqus assets

Property, plant and equipment with limited ownepstii the Company classified as collateral of ligiei

b

"Kozienice" S.A.

facility

insurance policy

title

Entity for which Debt as at 31
Name of - the collateral Debt as at 31 :
the Company: Collateral title | Type of collateral has been December 2014 December | Collateral period
: 2009
established
Capped mortgage .
BHU S.A. Overdraft up to PLN 5,250 Cank Zachodni 1158 -|  November 2011
WBK S.A.
thousand
Credit facility g/l ggg?ﬁﬁﬂ;? Bank Ochrony
Elektrownie Wodng Interest and y Srodowiska S.A.
Sp. z 0.0. proceeding costs ’Capped mortgage w Warszawie . 839 December 201
; up to PLN 1,440
if any O/Pozna
thousand
EP PUE Mortgage of PLN
ENERGOBUD | Investment credif 4,000 thousand | Nordea Bank 1855 2214|  February 201¢
Polska S.A.
Leszno Sp. z 0.0.
" Capped mortgage
Hotel ,EDISON" | 5, ordraft up to PLN 400 BZ WBK S.A. 74 93 October 2011
Sp. z o.0.
thousand
Z)I-I(-)SERWIS Sp. 2 Overdraft Capped mortgage BG.A. - 541 August 2010
Z)IT)SERWIS Sp. 2 Overdraft Capped mortgage BZ WBK S.A. 911 - October 2011
Registered pledge
on machines and
Auto-Styl Sp. z 0.0 Investment loan equipment in BGZ S.A. 86 155 March 2012
the amount of PLN
329 thousand
. Capped mortgage, | BZ WBK
PEC Sp.z0.0. in Leases assignment of Finanse & 223 349 November 2017
Oborniki > .
receivables Leasing S.A.
PEC S_p_. Z 0.0. in | Working capital ASS|gnment of BZ WBK S.A. _ 800 March 2010
Oborniki loan receivables
. National Fund
Assignment of for
receivables, Environmental
IIIEIekt_rov_vnlil Long-term loan staten_qept of Protection and - 11 907 December 201
Kozienice" S.A. submission to Water
enforcement Management
proceedings (NFOSgiG\N)
Registered pledge
on fixed assets, 16
blank bills of
. . | exchange, Nordic
IIIEIekt_rov_vm? Long-term credit authorization to Investment Bank 60 085 77275 December 201
Kozienice" S.A. | facility
the bank account, | S.A.
assignment of
insurance policy
title
Registered pledge
Elektrownia Long-term credit on fixed assets,
assignment of PKO BP S.A. 36 409 54 613 December 201
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Other collateral, including related to loans andrtwings presented in the preceding table.

No

Name of
the Company

Collateral title

Type of collateral

Entity for which the collateral has
been established

Debt as at 31
December 2010

Debt as at 31
December 2009

Collateral period

Claims arising from

INVESTMENT Sp. z o.0.

Energobud | the contract on purchase o ) . . -

1. Leszno products and services Blank bills of exchange PKN Orlen S.A. Undetermined Undetermined unlimited
secured with Fleet Cards
0. | Energobud | - oyateral of | Blank bills of exch K i 30 70 July 2012
| Leszno ollateral of leases ank bills of exchange Pekao Leasing Sp. z 0.0. uly

3. Energobud Collateral of a contract for Blank bills of exchange PZU S.A. Undetermined Undetermined unlimited

Leszno tender bonds

Eneraobud Service contract regarding
4. Leszrgwo regular provision of Blank bills of exchange PZU S.A. Undetermined - unlimited

performance bonds

Energobud Service contract regarding . . ) .
5. Leszno provision of bid bonds Blank bills of exchange TUIR WARTA S.A. Undetermined 2 July 2010

Energobud Authorization to charge the bank account,
6. Leszno Investment loan assignment of insurance policy title NORDEA BANK POLSKA S.A. 1855 2214 February 2016

Energobud Collateral of claims arising N "
7. Leszno from concluded contracts Performance bond and defect liability certificate MTP Sp. z 0.0. Pozna - 42 31 August 2010
g, | Energobud | Collateral of claims arising| pe ¢ rmance hond and defect liability certificate PSE Zachéd Pozna - 35 January 2010

Leszno from concluded contracts

’ . . . National Fund for Environmental

o |Elektrownie | Blank bill of exchange, assignment of receivabtesf Protection and Water Management 5974 .| 20 December 2023

Wodne power sales contract 5

(NFOSIGW)
Assignment of receivables from the power salesraotjt

Elektrownie assignment of insurance policy title on real propef Bank Ochrony Srodowiska S.A. )

10. Wodne Investment loan Dobrzyca hydro-power station, on which a mortgaae h w Warszawie O/Pozn# 839 December 2010
been established and blank bill of exchange

Elektrownie :
11. Wodne Collateral of leases Blank bill of exchange European Lease Fund - 12 August 2010
12. | Eneos Investment loan Assignment of a contract and bkl of exchange PKO BP S.A. 2226 3168 November 2017
13. | Auto-Styl Overdraft Blank bills of exchange Volkswagen Bank Polska S.A. 17 248 June 2011
14. | Auto-Styl Revolving loan tEi‘t'laenk bills of exchange and assignment of insUrgraiey |/ <\vagen Bank Polska S.A. 4464 3342 March 2011

. Fiduciary transfer of movables and assignment of

15. | Auto-Styl Revolving loan insurance policy Volkswagen Bank Polska S.A. 319 459 June 2011
16. | Auto-Styl Bank guarantee Assignment of insurance policy title BGZ S.A. 20 36 June 2011
17.| BHU ﬁ:n(i:ltateral of a purchase Blank bill of exchange; bill guarantee Philips Lighting (l):::t)rel Mazury Sp. z 400 400 Contract term
18.| BHU Collateral of leases Blank bills of exchange BRE Leasing Sp. z 0.0. - 134 December 2010
19. | BHU Collateral of lease Blank bill of exchange Raiffeisen-Leasing Polska S.A. 64 - 1 February 2013
20. | ENEA Collateral of receivables Blank bill of exchange PSE Operator S.A. 15 000 15 000 Contract term
21. | ENEA Space rental agreement Bank guarantee RONDO PROPERTY 20 10 13 December 2011
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(NFOSIGW)

22.| ENEA Purchase of electricity Bank guarantee PGE Elektra 132 007 132 007 15 February 2011
23. | Energomiar | Collateral of leases Blank bill of exchange Raiffeisen-Leasing Polska S.A. 5 24 April 2011
24. | Energomiar Blank bill of exchange Volkswagen Leasing Polska Sp. z 0.0. 106 165 December 2012
Collateral of leases
25. | Energomiar | Collateral of leases Blank bill of exchange Renault Credit Polska - 4 April 2010
Zaktad Collateral of claims arising| . . .
26. Transportu from product promotion fed Bill of exchange for PLN 58 thousand Castol Lubricant Sp.z 0.0. - Undetermined 24 July 2010
27.|ITsERwis | Sollateral of claims anisgl gy iy of exchange up to PLN 2,950 thousand Polkomtel S.A. - 2661| 30 June 2010
rom an agency contract
28. | ITSERWIS Collateral of leases Blank bills of exchange BZ WBK Leasing S.A. 43 41 31 March 2013
29. | ITSERWIS Overdraft Assignment of the insurance policy title BGZ S.A. - 541 31 August 2010
30.| ITSERWIS | Overdraft {;‘(‘;ugrr:éae“on to charge the bank account, blankabil BZ WBK S.A. 911 .| 31 October 2011
31. | Hotel Edison | Trade agreement Blank bill of exchange up to PliNdusand FEDRUS S.A. - - Contract term
32. QAES Pita Sp. Loan Blank bills of exchange and assignment ofivadédes WFOSIiGW 622 1570 May 2014
33. QAES Pita Sp. Loan Blank bills of exchange and assignment ofivadédes WFOSIiGW 1200 - July 2015
34. zﬂsg Pita Sp. Loan Blank bills of exchange and assignment ofivetédes WFOSIGW 161 - June 2015
) . National Fund for Environmental
35. Elektrownia Subsidy Blank bill of exchange (collateral amount of PLM 23 Protection and Water Management Undetermineq Undetermined 4 December 2011
Kozienice thousand) 5
(NFOSIGW)
) . National Fund for Environmental
36. Ef;gg;’gg'a Subsidy ?r:gS:a?:g)Of exchange (collateral amount of PLM &/ Protection and Water Management Undetermineq Undetermined 31 August 2012

Additionally, in line with loan agreements sigheg BNEA S.A. authorization to charge current acceuntbanks serving ENEA and statements of volunsatymission to

enforcement secure open and unused loan facilities.
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16. Inventories

31.12.2010 31.12.2009
Materials 226 144 283 891
Semi-finished products and work in progress 654 409
Finished products 368 37
Goods 21 640 22770

248 806 307 107
Impairment loss on inventories (6 748) (6 277)
TOTAL: 242 058 300 830
No collateral has been established on inventories.
17. Cash and cash equivalents
31.12.2010 31.12.2009

Cash in hand and at bank 510 304 435 833
- cash in hand 1 006 849
- cash at bank 509 298 434 984
Other cash 389 323 466 710
- cash in transit 649 964
- deposits 388 312 465 713
- other 362 33
Total cash and cash equivalents 899 627 902 543
Cash disclosed in the cash flows statement 899 627 902 543

Collateral established on cash is disclosed in hbte

As of 31 December 2010 the restricted cash amountBdN 10,341 thousand and comprised:
- cash at bank (blocked on the account in relatica security deposit, deposit for receivablestamasaction

deposit).

18. Investment portfolio

ENEA S.A. fulfilled the conditions necessary toeade funds due to the issue of shares at the WSk fr
the ESCROW account. Therefore, on 6 February 208eaialized financial institution dealing with
professional management of cash was transferrednttoeint of PLN 1,913,840 thousand. In accordantle wi

the Agreement, the funds are invested only in safairities, in line with the table below:

Type of assets Minimum exposure ~ Maximum exposure

Debt instruments underwritten or

guaranteed by the State Treasury and 0% 100%
the National Bank of Poland

Bank deposits 0% 30%

As of 31 December 2010 the funds amounted to PLRB1,939 thousand (treasury bills and bonds
of PLN 1,459,341 thousand) and deposits (in bapksified by the Company — PLN 322,598 thousand).
The investment portfolio is treated as financialeds measured at fair value through profit or ldes.selected

strategy is to maximize profit at minimum risk.
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19. Goodwill tested for impairment and measurement of all options for shares in PEC Oborniki and MEC
Pita

As of 31 December 2010 assets, including goodwiltwo companies acquired in 2008: Przehlsirstwo

Energetyki Cieplnej Sp. z 0. 0. in Oborniki (“PE®@@niki”) and Miejska Energetyka Cieplna Pita Sp. .

(“MEC Pifa”) were tested for impairment. As a rdstlle impairment loss on property, plant and eq&ipm

(recognized as of 31 December 2009) of PLN 728<hand related to PEC Oborniki was reversed.

The agreements on the acquisition of shares in ®B@niki and MEC Pita include irrevocable sharel ca
options valid in the period of 6 and 5 years frdm tlate of concluding the agreement, respectividigse
purchase options have been measured in these imaisdl financial statements. the Company recognized
the financial liability resulting from these opt®ras at 31 December 2008 in the amount of PLN 22,11
thousand corresponding to other capitals, the amofi PLN 1,691 thousand, constituting a difference
between measurement as at 31 December 2009 (PN 2thousand) and as at 31 December 2008 (PLN
22,110 thousand) corresponding to financial expea$e2009, whereas PLN 2,844 thousand accounting fo
the difference between measurement as at 31 Dece2h® (PLN 23,263 thousand) and as at 31 December
2009 (PLN 20,419 thousand) corresponding to fir@rexpenses of 2010.
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20. Equity

Balance as at 31.12.2010

Balance as of 31 December 2010

Series of shares

“A” series

“B” series

“C" series

Total number of shares
Total share capital

Share capital (face value)

Capital from business combination

Share capital adjusted by hyperinflation effect
TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL

Share premium

Share-based capital

Retained earnings

Minority interest

Revaluation reserve (financial instruments)
Other capitals

TOTAL EQUITY

Balance as at 31 December 2009

Balance as of 31 December 2009

Series of shares

“A” series

“B” series

“C" series

Total number of shares
Total share capital

Share capital (face value)

Capital from business combination

Share capital adjusted by hyperinflation effect
TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL

Share premium

Share-based capital

Retained earnings

Minority interest

Revaluation reserve (financial instruments)
Other capitals

TOTAL EQUITY

Number of shares Nominal value per
(items) share (in PLN)
295987 473

41 638 955
103 816 150
441 442 578

Share capital

295 988
41 639
103 816

441 443

441 443
38 810
107 765
588 018
3 632 464
1144 336
4 458 944
23 897
50 922
(22 110)
9876 471

Number of shares Nominal value per
(items) share (in PLN)
295987 473

41 638 955
103 816 150
441 442 578

Share capital

295 988
41 639
103 816

441 443

441 443
38 810
107 765
588 018
3632464
1144 336
3985 386
23778
20 756
(22 110)
9372628
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On 20 April 2010 the General Meeting of Sharehadldef ENEA S.A. adopted Resolution No. 7
on distribution of the net profit for the reportipgriod from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 200%rely
PLN 137,357 thousand was allocated to reservealapit

In relation to the public offering of shares arstitig of allotment certificates on Warsaw Stock &amge, by
31 December 2008 the Company acquired 1,129,6@8vadht certificates for treasury shares for thaltot
amount of PLN 17,396 thousand under the stabitinatiption.

On 11 August 2009, treasury shares sales transacbibthe nominal value of PLN 1 were settled résgl
in the disposal of 1,129,608 shares.

On 30 June 2009 the General Shareholders’ MeefiBfgN&A S.A. adopted a resolution No. 4 concernieg n
profit distribution for the financial period fromJanuary 2008 to 31 December 2008 under whichrtiwuat

of PLN 416 thousand was assigned to reserve capital

21. Trade and other liabilities

31.12.2010 31.12.2009

Carrying amount  Carrying amount

Non-current trade and other liabilities

Non-current trade liabilitie 2 58

2 58
Current trade and other liabilities
Trade liabilitie: 667 953 659 171
Advance payments received for deliveries, works serglice 682 24 263
Tax and similar liabilities (except for income t 183 076 184 209
Special fund 7 636 10 415
Liabilities due to purchase of other shares in glidses 23 263 20419
Othel 135 195 73 485
Total short-term 1017 80! 971 96:
TOTAL 1017 80 972 02(
22. Credit facilities and loans

31.12.2010 31.12.2009

Carrying amount

Carrying amount

Long-term

Bank credit facilitie 66 006 102 312

Loan:s 6 356 4744
72 36: 107 05t¢

Short-term

Bank credit facilitie 41 285 40 976

Loan:s 1113 8 975
42 39¢ 49 95!

TOTAL 114 76( 157 00°
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Repayment schedule of long-term credit facilities antbans

31.12.2010 31.12.2009
1-3years 51 606 74 47¢
3 -5years 18 283 3241C
Over 5 years 2473 171
TOTAL 72 362 107 05¢

23. Settlement of income due to subsidies and connectitees

31.12.201 31.12.200

Carrying amount Carrying amount

Long-term
Deferred income due to subsid 210 797 232 239
Deferred income due to connection | 502 418 514 878
713 21! 747 11°
Short-term
Deferred income due to subsidies 14 767 14 640
Deferred income due to connection fees 107 603 87 573
122 37( 102 21
Deferred income schedul
31.12.2010 31.12.2009
Up to 1 year 122 370 102 213
1to 5 years 93 686 94 496
Over 5 years 619 529 652 621
835 58! 849 33(

24. Equity related to share-based payments and liabiiés due to the equivalent of the right to acquire

shares free of charge

On the basis of the Act on commercialization andatization of 30 August 1996 (Act on commercialiaa
and privatization) employees of the ENEA Capitab@r are entitled to acquire 15% of the shares iE&AN
S.A. free of charge (“plan”).

Employees eligible to acquire shares free of chamgeindividuals who were employed by the ENEA S.A.
Capital Group at the time of commercialization .(ii@ 1993 and 1996) and filed a written declaration

acquire shares within 6 months of the commerciatinadate.

As the first share was sold on general terms testors by the State Treasury on 10 February 2014, a
the lapse of three months the eligible individwadguired the right to receive shares free of charge

Pursuant to Resolution No. 441/2010 of 29 June 2B&Management Board of ENEA S.A. determined
the number of ENEA shares disposed of free of éhéog the benefit of eligible individuals, attrilalie to
each group specified based on the length of serageper Article 11 of the Ordinance of the Minister
of he Treasury of 29 January 2003 laying down tktgirinciples for classification of eligible empkes into
groups, determining the number of shares attribdetebeach group and the conditions for acquisitbhares

by eligible employees. In compliance with the afoemtioned Ordinance, the Management Board

of the Company provided the Minister of the Tregswith a list of eligible individuals and the nuntbe
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of hares assigned. the Minister of the Treasuryeanaig announcement regarding the disposal of employe
shares in a national and local newspaper andribig entering into agreements for the sale of shaess

of charge with eligible individuals (most of theragments have been already concluded).

The Management Board of ENEA S.A. assigned 33,3%0shares to eligible individuals. the lockup pério
for the shares acquired by eligible individualsefigf charge is two years starting from the datelisposal

of he first shares on general terms by the Stagdadury.

Pursuant to IFRS 2, the costs of the plan shoulebegnized in the period when eligible employeexdqrm

work and the cost of work should be determinedfafie Grant Date, i.e. as of the date when alliigamt
conditions for granting shares to employees arerdehed.

The value of the employee stock ownership plan determined by the Company based on the measurement
of shares in ENEA S.A. as of the date of drawingthg consolidated financial statements for therfaizl
years ended 31 December 2007, 31 December 2008Hhridecember 2005, included in the prospectus
of NEA S.A. the value of the plan was estimate®latl 901 million. the ENEA SA Capital Group recogsilz

the total costs of the plan as a previous yeargusamient in equity of the earliest period presented
in he consolidated financial statements, i.e. ag§ danuary 2005, and it did not revalue the costefaany

of he dates ending the subsequent financial periods

According to the Management Board, IFRS do notdayn detailed principles for accounting for a plan
displaying the features specified in the Act on @uercialization and Privatization. In particulareyhdo not
allow for unambiguous interpretation of a situatishere the total number of shares due to staff eyeg
at he moment of commercialization, i.e. before@nant Date, was determined but the number of sharbe
granted to particular employees was not specifieduch a case an employee working in subsequeiatdige
by the Grant Date, is likely to be granted a higlh@mber of shares. This, however, will not takecelby way

of an issue of additional shares but as a resutrefluction of the number of shares for othef staimbers.

Moreover, according to the Management Board, tlye garpose of the plan was to grant employees
compensation for work before the date of commemzitibn of the enterprise (i.e. in the past). Cojusatly,

the total fixed number of shares for employees aesrmined and could not be changed with relatondrk

in subsequent periods.

Considering the above, the Management Board of EISEA decided that the value of the plan would ret
changed. As a result, the value of the plan asddd@&ember 2010 stood at PLN 921 million.

Pursuant to the Act of 7 September 2007 on theisitign of shares from the State Treasury as dtresu
of he energy sector consolidation process, thdlid¢igemployees of Elektrownia “Kozienice” S.A. were
supposed to submit a declaration of the intentmm®xchange the equivalent for the right to acqshares

in NEA S.A. free of charge by 18 January 2008. dwihg the examination of the declarations submitted
as ell as the result of the complaint procedure,viiiue of shares to be accounted for as an egquivalas
PLN 291.127 thousand (PLN 514,920 thousand as of D&tember 2007). Exchange of the value

The notes presented on pages 11-99 constituteegrah part of the consolidated financial statersent
62



ENEA Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements prepared inviite EU-IFRS for the year ended 31 December 2010

(if not stated otherwise, all amounts in PLN'000)

of he equivalent for subscription rights worth PRR4,042 thousand was disclosed in the Company’gyequ

under “Share-based capital”.

As of 31 December 2010 a portion of the equivaleats paid to the Eligible Employees of Elektrownia
“Kozienice” S.A. As of 31 December 2010 the remagnliability due to the equivalent amounted to PAHY
thousand (PLN 618 thousand as of 31 December 2009).

25. Financial instruments

25.1. Financial risk management principles

The Capital Group is exposed to the following catezs of risk related to financial instruments:

= credit risk;

= liquidity risk

= market risk

= currency risk;

= interest rate risk.
This note presents information on the Group’s eypo$o each of the aforementioned risks as welhasisk
and capital management objectives, policy and phaes. the relevant figures have been disclosdtidse

consolidated financial statements.

Development and compliance with the risk managemelity is the responsibility of the Management Bba
of the Parent. Risk is managed on an ongoing hbiadise Capital Group. Risks are analyzed in coraact
with the impact of the external environment as vesl changes in the structure and activity of theu@r
Taking these into consideration, the steps are rtakkn aimed at mitigation of the risk or its triEemseyond
the capital group. In order to do so, its employaeseducated on possibilities of risks occurresnue their

influence on the activity of individual organizatal units and the Group as a whole.

Aware of the risks relating to it business actesti in 2010 ENEA S.A. undertook measures aimed
at development of an integrated, formalized risknagement system including credit, liquidity, market
currency and interest rate risk. At present, pei@nd procedures regulating the risk managemeoesgs are

being developed.

In the current period, the Parent and its subs&lahave not concluded any transaction on risk ingdg
instruments. Elektrownia Bialystok S.A., an asswgids the only entity that concluded a currencycpase
contract hedging currency risk related to purchafseoal in USD denominated contracts. As at thahed

sheet date, the transaction generated gains of enimlaamount compared to the Group performance.
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25.2. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial losses whiclayrbe incurred if a customer or a contractor baiarty to

a financial instrument fails to meet its contratfaigations.

Credit risk is mainly related to debt collectiometkey factors that affect the occurrence of creidk

at he Group include:

» a substantial number of customers resulting innanease in the costs incurred to monitoring debt

collection;
» the necessity to supply electricity to budgetariyufacing financial difficulties;

» legal requirements defining the principles for &letty supply suspension as a result of default

on payment.

The Management Board applies a credit policy whpcbvides for credit risk monitoring on an ongoing
basis. the Group carries out a credit standing yaiglfor all clients requiring loans exceeding e-pr

determined cap. the Group does not require coflateym its clients in relation to financial assets
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The maximum exposure of the Group to credit rigiréssented below:

31.12.2010 31.12.2009

Carrying amount  Carrying amount

Current and non-current financial assets held turitg 250 934 55734
Current and non-current financial assets measurdrazalue through profit o

loss 1783 350 1653 74:
Trade and other receivables 922 628 926 84:
Cash and cash equivale 899 627 902 54:
TOTAL 3856 539 3538 86:

The credit risk relating to receivables differs fiodividual market segments in which the Groupiearout its
business activities:
= electricity and distribution service sales to indixal customers — a considerable amount of past
due receivables. Although they do not represestiaiss threat to the Group’s financial position,
measures aimed at their reduction have been ukdertaActions aimed at improvement
of he collection process have been undertaken vimgl development of new and update
of he existing manuals and principles of collectemmd cooperation with professional entities.
the collection process starts 20-25 days aftepéyenent deadline. Implementation of a uniform
debt collection policy allowed ENEA S.A. to reduite reaction time as well as avoid a long
and frequently ineffective court enforcement prased Legal measures are applied to cases
whose value is higher than the cost-benefit ratiadebt collection;
= sales of electricity and distribution services tosibess and key clients, where overdue
receivables are higher than in the segment of iddal clients. However, the collection
procedure is similar and collection measures ardenaken within 6-10 business days
of he payment date;
= other receivables — compared to the above segnte@tamounts of past due receivables are

immaterial.

A key role in the debt collection process is plapgcemployees supervising contacts with custonvens, are
responsible for debt collection monitoring. the @Gyotends to collect overdue receivables througkectlir
contact with a customer. Cooperation with a debtowell as obtaining information on its current dmtlire

financial position is one of the main tasks of tinection established for that purpose.

The Group monitors the amount of past due recedgbh an ongoing basis and in justified cases Ifigsl

complaints and recognizes appropriate impairmessgds.

The Group makes current financial investments wiiclude mainly bank deposits as well as treasilty b
and bonds.

The Group does not grant sureties or guarantiasrelated parties.
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25.3. Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk is the risk that the Group wile unable to meet its financial obligations at date.

The Group’s liquidity risk policy involves ensuringufficient funds necessary to settle financial

and investment liabilities applying the most attirgefinancing sources, e.g. issuing debt securitie

Liquidity management focuses on a detailed analg$ishe receivables collection scheme, the on-going
monitoring of bank accounts and cash concentratiorconsolidated accounts. the Group undertakes
measures aimed at reducing the receivables caltegieriod and extending the settlement period for i

liabilities, whereas the excess funds are investedrrent assets in the form of term deposits.

Taking into account ongoing risk management as a®lthe market and financial position of the Graup

may be concluded that its liquidity risk remaingahinimum level.

Another liquidity risk management tool involves maining of open and unused loan facilities
in the amount of PLN 155,192 thousand as at 31 iDbee 2010 (PLN 156,938 thousand as at 31 December
2009).
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The Group’s financial assets and liabilities by uni&y are presented in the table below:

Financial assets

Trade and other Finance lease Bank credit Cash and cash Trade and other :
- L . Loans . . measured at fair value
liabilities liabilities facilities equivalents receivables )
through profit or loss
31.12.2010
Carrying amount 1017 807 3876 107 291 7 469 (899 627) (922 628) 78@L350)
Undiscounted contractual ca
flows (1017 807) (5 380) (111 658) (7 469) 899 627 922 628 783350
up to 6 months (1017 794) (1 211) (23 799) (233) 899 627 917 932 3130
6 - 12 months (11) (1 211) (19 894) (880) - 4528
1-2years 2) (2 205 (35 427 (1752 - 57
2 —5years - (753) (32107) (2 707) - 111
Over 5 years - - (431) (1 897) - -
Trade and other Finance lease Bank credit Cash and cash Trade and other Financial as_sets
- - e Loans . A measured at fair value
liabilities liabilities facilities equivalents receivables ’
through profit or loss

31.12.2009
Carrying amount 972 020 3469 143 288 13719 (902 543) (926 843) 5@L®12)
Undiscounted contractu
cash flow: (972 020) (3 789) (151 422) (14 074) 902 543 926 843 653742
up to 6 months (968 580) (803) (24 122) (4 552) 902 543 921 256 1552
6 - 12 months (3382) (490) (20 565) (4719) - 4 257
1-2vyears (58) (1 605 (37 508 (4 598 - 1330 1219
2 —5years - (890) (68 796) (94) - -
Over 5 years - 1) (431) (111) - -

Financial instruments

held to maturity TOTAL
(250 934) (2 720 096)
254 212 2717 601
254 212 2812182
- - (22 008)
- (34 808)
- (34 551)
- (3214)
Financial instruments
held to maturity TOTAL
(55 734) (2 406 366)
56 772 2 398 59¢
56 182 2534 44
- 590 (24 309)
- (41 220
- (69 780)
- (543)
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25.4. Market risk

Market risk is related to changes in supply, demand prices as well as other factors which maycéaffe
the Group’s performance or the value of assetsh(siscexchange rates, interest rates, cost of Gapitees
of goods). the objective of market risk managenietd maintain the risk exposure within an accelgtédvel
while optimizing the return on risk.

One of the key market risks results from the féett tbeing an integrated energy company operatisgda
on an electricity trading license, the Group isuieed to provide electricity tariffs for the housdth
and prepaid G tariff groups for approval. On theeothand, companies engaged in energy production
and trading are released from the above obligatlmGroup acquires energy at market prices aruliledbs
its tariff based on costs regarded as legitimatahigyPresident of the Energy Regulatory Office &l as
margins (for electricity trading) or return on egufor distribution) planned to be earned in thbsequent
tariff period. Therefore, during the tariff peritite Group’s ability to transfer adverse changeissioperating
costs to electricity end users is limited. a taaiffjustment request may be filed to the PresidétheoERO

only in the event of a dramatic rise in costs fasons beyond the Company’s control.

25.5. Currency risk

The exposure of the Group to currency risk is preskbelow.

Including foreign
currency amount

. ; . Currency risk impact on
31.12.2010 Carrying amount denominated in Y P

) profit/loss
functional currency
(PLN)
1% -1%
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 899 627 3970 40 (40)
Trade and other receivables 922 628 25 0 0)
Other financial assets 327 212 - - -
Financial liabilities
Credit facilities and loans (114 760) (60 085) (601) 601
Trade and other liabilities (1017 807) (4 134) (41) 41
Finance lease liabilities (3876) - - -
Impact on profit/loss before tax (602) 602
19% tax 114 (114)
Impact on profit/loss after tax (488) 488
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Including foreign

currency amount .
y Currency risk impact on

31.12.2009 Carrying amount denominated in )
functional currency profitioss
(PLN)
1% -1%
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 902 543 4051 41 (41)
Trade and other receivables 926 843 7 840 78 (78)
Other financial assets 1748 822 - - -
Financial liabilities
Credit facilities and loans (157 007) (76 734) (767) 767
Trade and other liabilities (972 020) (6 173) (62) 62
Finance lease liabilities (3 469) (110) 1) 1
Impact on profit/loss before tax (711) 711
19% tax 135 (135)
Impact on profit/loss after tax (576) 576

25.6. Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk applies to debt arising firedit facilities and loans taken, financial assetthe form
of debt securities portfolio and bank depositsel@st rate is floating and based on WIBOR ratesngés
in the interest rate on financial assets and lt&sl are synchronized both in terms of percentagktiming.
the Group limits the interest rate risk on loanstigh selecting a favorable interest period, dejpgnamong
others on the WIBOR rate and solvency level. Certaégks cannot be avoided, since they are caused by

macro-economic trends.

The table below, presenting financial assets aadbiliies by fixed and floating interest rates, w0

the Group sensitivity to interest rate risk:

Fixed rate instruments 31.12.2010 31.12.2009
Financial assets 944 661 977 32(
Financial liabilities

(1017 807) (972 020)
TOTAL (73 146) 530C
Floating rate instruments
Financial assets 2910 467 2 560 31¢
Financial liabilities (118 636) (160 476)
TOTAL 2791831 2 399 84(
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Effective interest rate applicable to interest b@passets and liabilities is presented in thectaielow:

31.12.2010 31.12.2009

Average weighted Carrying Average weighted Carrying

interest rate (%) amount interest rate (%) amount
Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss 5,12 1781939 1,55-4,83 1652 52!
Cash and cash equivalents 3,41 899 627 3,43 902 54:
Finance lease liabilities 5,93 (3876) 4,90 (3 469)
Loans 4,88 (7 469) 2,85 (13 719)
Floating interest rate credit facilities 3,16 (10719 3,09 (143 288)
TOTAL 2562 930 2 394 59(

The effective interest rates presented in the tableve are determined as the weighted averageterest
rates.

The table below presents the impact of interestechainges on the Group’s financial profit/loss.

Carrying L . Carrying o )
amount  INterestrate risk impact on profitioss 0+ Interest rate risk impact on profit/loss
(12 months) (12 months)
31.12.2010 31.12.2009
+1p.p. -1p.p. +1p.p. -1p.p.
Financial assets
Cash
899 627 8996 (8996) 902 543 9025 (9 025)

Trade and other receivables 922 628 926 843
Other financial assets 2032873 20329 (20 329) 1708 257 17083 (17 083)
Impact on profit/loss before tax 29 325 (29 325) 26108 (26 108)
19% tax (5572) 5572 (4 961) 4961
Impact on profit/loss after tax 44082 (44 082 38230 (38230
Financial liabilities
Credit facilities and loans (114 760) (1 148) 1148 (157 007) (1570) 157C
Trade and other liabilities (1017 807) (972 020)
Finance lease liabilities (3876 (39 39 (3469 (35) 35
Impact on profit/loss before tax (1 186) 1186 (1 605) 1608
19% tax 225 (225) 305 (305)
Impact on profit/loss after tax (961) 961 (1.300) 130C
TOTAL 43121 (43121) 36 930 (36 930)

25.7. Capital management

The key assumption of the capital management pa@yeloped by the Group is maintaining an optimum

capital structure with the objective to reducedtst, ensuring a good credit rating and safe dapitas

supporting its operations and increasing its stadeh value. It is also important to maintain a@s{y capital

base being a foundation for building confidencefutfire investors, creditors and market, and engurin

the future development of the Group. In order tontaén or adjust its capital structure, the Grougynmssue

new shares or sell its assets. the Group moni®ispital using the debt ratio and the return quitg ratio.

Its objective is to ensure an optimum level of diffi@rementioned ratios.
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25.8. Fair value

The table below presents the fair values as cordgarearrying amounts:

31.12.2010 31.12.2009

Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value

amount amount
Long-term financial assets available for sale (shar
unrelated parties) 74 867 74 867 39 346 39 34¢
Non-current financial assets held to maturity - - - -
Non-current financial assets measured at fair v
through profit or loss 1411 1411 1219 121¢
Current financial assets available for sale - - - -
Current financial assets held to maturity 250 934 0 234 55734 55734
Current financial assets measured at fair valusutytt
profit or loss 1781939 1781939 1652523 1652 52¢
Trade and other receivables 922 628 922 628 926 843 926 84!
Cash and cash equivalents 899 627 899 627 902 543 902 54:
Credit facilities and loans 114 760 114 760 157 007 156 74¢
Finance lease liabilities 3876 3876 3469 3 46¢
Trade and other liabiliti¢ 1017 807 1017 807 972 020 972 02(

Financial assets available for sale include shiaresirelated parties for which the ratio of interescapital

to the nominal value is lower than 20%.

Long-term financial assets measured at fair vahreugh profit or loss include units in the “Piorieer
Investment Fund which can be traded on an activikehaas a result of which their fair value may be
determined. the fair value of the above units wassuared at the market price of participation umitsereas

its changes in the financial period recognizedrofipor loss.

Short-term financial assets measured at fair véifmeugh profit or loss include an investment pdidfo

managed by a company specialized in professiondl flaianagement (Note 18).

Current financial assets held to maturity incluéalbdeposits with the original maturity from 3 muito 1

year.

26. Finance lease liabilities

31.12.2010 31.12.2009
Finance lease liabilities — minimum lease payments
Up to 1 year 2134 1178
1 -5 years 1742 2274
Over 5 years - 17
Present value of lease payments 3876 3469
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27. Deferred income tax

31.12.2010 31.12.2009

Carrying amount Carrying amount

Deferred tax asse

- deferred tax asset realizable after 12 mc 249 370 253771

- deferred tax asset realizable within 12 ma 147 311 113 290
396 68: 367 06:

Offset of deferred tax asset against deferredigdility within the Grouj (396 681 (367 061

Deferred tax asset disclosed in the balance sh - -

Deferred tax provision:

- deferred tax provision to be settled after 12 the 335514 352 427
- deferred tax provision to be settled within 12ntfg 141 620 127 000
477 134 479 427
Offset of deferred tax asset against deferred taxigion within the Group (396 681) (367 061)
Deferred tax provision disclosed in the balance skt 80 45! 112 36¢

Changes in the deferred tax liability (considerting net-off of asset and liability):

31.12.2010 31.12.2009
Opening balance 112 366 123 480
Amount debited/(credited) to profit (36 309) (16 240)
Amount debited/(credited) to other items of compredive income 4 396 5126
Closing balance 80 45! 112 36¢
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Changes in the deferred tax asset and liability ithe financial year (prior to their setoff):

Deferred tax asset

Provision for

Provision for disposal, Tax deductible

Impairment . Settlement of costs of .
Liabilities due to ; reclamation and expenses after the
losses on ) revenue from redemption of Grants
. employee benefits . " purchase of CO2 end of the
receivables connection fees  certificates of SR }
.- emission rights settlement period
origin
Balance as at 1 January 2009 — 19% rate 3245 118772 93671 30 684 43 379 6 664 46 392
Change due to acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - - -
Amount recognize in the financia profit/loss due to a
change in temporary differences 627 (17 021) 9 327 (12 997) (2 202) (2 269) 13 841
Change recognized in equity - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2009 — 19% rate 3872 b6 102 998 17 687 41 177 4 395 60 233
Amount recognize in the financia profit/loss due to a
change in temporary differences 452 7 489 (2 308) 23988 (3711) (2073) (3774)
Change recognized in equity - 75 - - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2010 — 19% rate 4324 o 100 690 41 675 37 466 2322 56 459
Deferred tax provision
Income taxed after Accrued unbilled Fair value
the end of the measurement of Other
. . sales )
accounting period fixed assets
Balance as at 1 January 2009 — 19% rate 50 170 42 117 377 867 27 039
Amount recognized in the financial profit/loss doea change in temporary differences
9125 4 098 (20 568) (15 547)
Change recognized in equity - - - 5126
Balance as at 31 December 2009 — 19% rate 59 295 46 215 357 299 16 618
Amount recognized in the financial profit/loss doea change in temporary differences
(2 443) 1687 (19 130) 13 986
Change recognized in equity - - - 3607
Balance as at 31 December 2010 — 19% rate 56 852 47 902 338 169 34 211

Other

30 951

204

34 993

10 280
(798)
44 475

Total

497 193

(22 892)
5126

479 427

(5 900)
3607
477 13¢

Total

373 71¢

(6 652)

367 061

30 342
(723)
396 681
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28. Liabilities due to employee benefits

Defined benefit plan
Retirement benefi
- long-term portio
- short-term portio

Right to energy allowance after retirerr
- long-term portio
- short-term portio

Jubilee bonust
- long-term portio
- short-term portio

Appropriation to the Company’s Social Benefits Féoidpensionel
- long-term portion
- short-term portio

Total: Defined benefit plan

- long-term portion
- short-term portion

Payroll and other liabilitie
- long-term portio
- short-term portio

Total liabilities due to employee benefit
- long-term portion
- short-term portion

Based on an arrangement entered into by the repgetses of staff and the Group, its the employaers

entitled to specific benefits other than remunerati.e.:
e jubilee benefits;
» retirement and disability benefits;

« electricity allowance;

31.12.2010 31.12.2009
63 272 63 051
15758 12 418
79 03( 75 46¢

160 196 150 265
7277 7043
167 47 157 30¢
166 524 158 302
21891 18 580
188 41! 176 88:
23164 20 617
1059 1005
24 220 21 62:
413 156 392 235
45 98¢ 39 04¢
459 14! 431 28:
14 97¢ 14 858
100 87¢ 86 496
115 85 101 35
428 13- 407 09!
146 86« 125 54;
574 99¢ 532 63!

* social security — an appropriation to the Compa®gsial Benefits Fund.

The present value of the related future liabilittess been measured using actuarial methods. Cadrida

were made using basic individual data for the Gagdroup employees as at 31 December 2010 (takiiog i

account their sex) regarding:
e age;
» length of service with the Group;

« total length of service;

* remuneration constituting the assessment basjslidee benefits as well as retirement and disgbili

benefits.
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Additionally, the following assumptions were made the purpose of the analysis:

employee turnover was taken into account basedatistecal data of the Group and the information
on employee turnover in the power industry estichdg AVCS Sp. z 0.0.;

mortality rate and the probability of receiving léits were adopted in line with the Life Expectancy
Tables published by the Central Statistical Office;

the value of the provision for disability benefitgs not determined separately but the individuals
receiving disability allowance were not taken intmsideration in calculating the employee turnover
ratio;

the pensionable age: 65 for men and 60 for womeim(arevious years);

the pay rise rate was adopted at the level of I&%he years 2011-2012; 3.2% for 2013 and 3.5%
for subsequent years (3.5% as at 31 December 2009);

the interest rate for discounting future benefitaswadopted at the level of 5.77% (6.15% as at
31 December 2009);

the base value of the annual equivalent of theriddg allowance for pensioners, disability
pensioners and other beneficiaries was adoptduedével of PLN 1,319.32 (PLN 1,282.82 as at 31
December 2009);

as at 31 December 2010 the electricity price grawth adopted amounted to 5.30% for 2011, with
the following increases: 15.40% for 2012, 8.30%2Z64.3, 10.40% for 2014, 11.00% for 2015 (as at
31 December 2009, the electricity price increasssimed amounted to 5.50% for 2010, 21.30% for
2011, 2.40% for 2012, 15.00% for 2013, 21.00 %2fat4 and 3.2% in 2015);

distribution charge growth rate for 2011 was adodpie the level of 2.20%, for 2012 +5.98%, for
2013 +5.64%, for 2014 + 7.55% and for 2015 +5.58% 4t 31 December 2009 it was +7.86% for
2010, + 4.64% for 2011 and + 4/25% for 2012);

the average rise in the cash equivalent of theredgg allowance was adopted for 2011 at the level
of 5.40%, for 2012 +12.80%, for 2013 +8.80%, fod206-10.90%, for 2015 +10.60%, in 2016-2019
+ 4.60%; in 2020-2022 + 4.70%; in 2023 and later56% (as at 31 December 2009, the rise for
2010 was assumed to be +7.90%m in 2011 +14.302014 +3.60%, in 2013 _ 11.70%, in 2014 +
16.10%, in 2015-2016 + 4.70%; in 2017-2021 + 4.80#6,2022 + 4.90% and +2.50% for

the remaining forecast period).
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29. Provision for certificates of origin

Certificates of origin

Advance payments for certificates of origin
Provision for costs of redemption of certificaté®ogin
Provision for certificates of origin

30. Provisions for liabilities and other charges

Opening balance

Increase in provisions
Applied provision
Decrease in provisio
Closing balanc

31.12.2010 31.12.2009
(119 538) (45 437)
(2 610 (1259
214 794 93 235
92 64¢ 46 53¢
31.12.2010 31.12.2009
87 73¢ 81 02¢
66 124 21979
- (11 407)
(18 390) (3 862)
135 47, 87 73¢

Provisions for liabilities are determined in reasole, reliably estimated amounts. Individual prinns are

recognized for projected losses related to coutbadrought against the Group. the provisions aeated

in the amount of the claim considering the probgbibf losing the case based on alegal opinioe. dbst

of provisions is recognized under other operatiRgeases. the description of material claims andvesit

contingent liabilities has been presented in ndi#s§, 47.4 and 47.5.

Provisions for liabilities and other charges induthainly the amount for claims of individuals owgireal

property arising from non-contractual use of lathé: majority of such claims are requests for corspgon

for non-contractual use of land, determination oémtal fee or requests for relocation of facititigestoring

land to its previous condition). As at 31 DecemB@L0, a substantial number of claims filed had brexn

brought to court. the Group recognizes a relatedigion for both disputed claims brought to countl @laims

which have not been submitted to court yet.

Provisions are also created for the use of woodlam@haged by National Forests for the purpose

of construction of power lines owned by the Group.

The notes presented on pages 11-99 constituteegrah part of the consolidated financial statersent

76



ENEA Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements prepared inviite EU-IFRS for the year ended 31 December 2010

(if not stated otherwise, all amounts in PLN'000)

Other provisions

31.12.2010 31.12.2009
Opening balance 23 97¢ 36 90¢
Increase in provisiol 93 582 67 789
Applied provision (83 454) (68 824)
Decrease in provisio - -
Release of unused provision (2 186) (11 895)
Closing balanc 31927 23 97¢

Provision for land reclamation

After closing or filling a slag and ash dump, the@® is obliged to carry out appropriate land rewtion. As

the Group has large unfilled dumps, land reclamai® planned for 2060. Future estimated costs odl la
reclamation were discounted to their current vadseat 5.77% (as at 31 December 2009, using a 6.15%
discount rate).

As of 31 December 2010 the provision amounted tN BI890 thousand (as of 31 December 2009 it was PLN
7,629 thousand).

Provision for the cost of disposal or storage of &sand slag mixture

The Group produces two types of waste in the podésdurning coal: ash and ash and slag mixture. As
the Group incurs costs related to mixture dispasatcognizes a relevant provision. Future estidatosts of
disposing or dumping ash and slag mixture wereodisted to their current value at 5.77% (as at 3debwer
2009, at 6.15%).

As of 31 December 2010 the provision amounted tN R334 thousand (as of 31 December 2009 it was PLN
4,107 thousand).

Provision for purchasing CO, emission rights
As at 31 December 2010 the provision determineédas the market price of G@mission rights amounted
to PLN 906 thousand (as at 31 December 2009 itRk&A$11,109 thousand).

In November 2010 Elektrownia “Kozienice” S. A. cted a provision of PLN 5,066 thousand (plus inteass

of 30 November 2010 of PLN 1,159 thousand) to carer additional fee calculated by the Marshal’si¢aff
(Decision No. 132/10/ and 133/10/Q of 16 July 2010) being the difference betweenféeefor the use

of the environment for the first and second hal2008 paid to the account of the Marshal’s Offind the fee
calculated for emissions of pollutants specifiedha report of PRTR. Pursuant to the decision efS3hlf-
government Appeal Court in Warsaw of 23 Decembet02@he fee and interest was paid to the account
of the Marshal’s Office in January 2011. TherefdreDecember 2010 the Company created provision for
the difference in the fee paid for 2009 and 2014 e fee calculated for the emission of pollutamscified

in the PRTR report. the provision for 2009 is PLJ88Y thousand; for 2010: PLN 5,806 thousand. Istefte
2009 and the first half of 2010 (the fee for theosel half of 2010 has not been yet paid) amounted t
PLN 693 thousand and for the first and second ¢fa008 (from 1 December 2010 to 31 December 2010),
PLN 52 thousand.
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Provision for liabilities

31.12.2010 31.12.2009
Long-tern 78 068 30 217
Short-tern 89 325 81500
Closing balance 167 39: 111 71
31. Net sales revenue
01.01.2010 -31.12.2010  01.01.2009 - 31.12.2009
Revenue from sales of electricity 4995 638 4 620 23¢
Revenue from sales of distribution services 2526 943 2 297 37:
Revenue from sales of goods and materials 111 695 143 641
Revenue from sales of other services 132 821 121 85¢
Compensation to cover stranded costs 15580 (77 381)
Revenue from sales of heat 54 198 47 78€
Total net sales revenu 7 836 875 7 153 50¢
32. Costs by type
01.01.2010-31.12.2010 01.01.2009 - 31.12.2009
Amortization.depreciation (652 672) (661 345)
Consumption: materials, raw materials, value ofdgoand mat.so (1535465 (1573232
- consumption of materials and energy (1 394 166) (1391 998)
- bonus from suppliers 452 14 889
- value of goods and materials sold (141 751) (196 123)
External services (1 057 890) (1026 789)
- transmission services (693 340) (694 791)
- other external services (364 550) (331 998)
Costs of employee benefits (924 356) (823 964)
- payroll (675 533) (578 173)
- social security and other benefits (248 823) (245 791)
Taxes and charges (199 959) (171 261)
Value of energy purchased for res (2 689 513) (2 350 461)
Total cost: of products, goods and materials sold, [costs of sale: and
marketing and general and administrative costs (7 059 855) (6 607 052)
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33. Costs of employee benefits

01.01.2010 - 31.12.2010  01.01.2009 - 31.12.2009

Payroll expenses, including: (675 533) (578 173)
- current remuneration (642 304) (606 292)
- jubilee benefits (22 072) 22 916

- retirement benefits (5 686) 9716

- other (5471) (4 513)
Costs of social security and other benefits (248 823) (245 791)
- social security premiums (124 531) (119 084)
- appropriation to the Company’s Social Benefitai&u (31 548) (34 694)
- other social benefits (68 843) (64 605)
- other post-employment benefits (4 558) (9 768)
- other (19 344) (17 640)
TOTAL (924 356) (823 964)

Employment guarantees

Based on an arrangement entered into by the Groddador unions, specific employment guarantee® hav
been given to people employed by the Company b&f8rdune 2007 (except from Elektrownia “Kozienice”
S.A)), which expire on 31 December 2018.

Furthermore, the provisions of the aforementionedreement will remain in force longer for employee
who, at the expiry of the guarantees, have maxinfum years to satisfy the conditions to acquire gi@m
rights. This denotes that in the event the empldgis to comply with the guarantees, employmenttiacts
may not be terminated without payment of additiohmnefits to employees who, at the expiry

of the guarantees, have maximum four years tofgdlkis conditions to acquire pension rights.

Under the employment guarantees, the Group is eblip pay an employee an amount being the product
of their monthly salary and the remaining period tieé guarantee validity if the employment contrisct

terminated by the employer.

Pursuant to a social contract concluded on 10 Aug087 between Elektrownia “Kozienice” S.A. anddab
unions, employees of that entity obtained an empkmt guarantee extended by 11 years as at theacontr

effective date, i.e. by 30 January 2019.

Arrangements entered into with employees of the Gyo

As aresult of collective arrangements entered imothe Group and the labor unions in February 2005
and July 2007 the parties undertook to apply measaimed at payment of compensations to the emgdoye
of the Group who are not entitled to receive shard&SNEA S.A. from the 15% block of shares to bguaed

by Eligible Employees. the parties agreed to ernt¢o a separate arrangement regarding the potential

compensations.
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Considering the aforementioned arrangements, oM&82008 the Management Board of the Parent entered
into an arrangement with the Group labor unionwigiing for a payment of cash compensation of PLN614
million on a one-off basis. the compensation wakgoome payable after 24 months from the datespfodial

of at least 1 share in ENEA S.A. by the State Tupasin line with the provisions of the Act

on Commercialization and Privatization. the arranget replaced former ones regarding employee shaas
payment of compensation included in the above geaments concluded in 2005 and 2007. Accordingsto it
contents, it did not anyhow override employee sgtesulting from other agreements and arrangements.
In case of any discrepancies between the provisibtise arrangement and other agreements or amaags,

the provisions which were more favorable to the leyges were to prevail.

The process of submitting and analyzing complaifismployees regarding calculation of years iniserfor
the purpose of the share-based payment plan hascoeepleted. In the present stage, the currentfemder
employees and other individuals (not being emplsyee former employees) submit claims regarding
compensation or granting a larger number of shamsder the share-based plan. ENEA S.A. considers
the claims groundless. In the opinion of the Congpamalculation of years in service followed regidas

of the Act on commercialization and privatizatiordats secondary regulations.

34. Other operating revenue and expense

Other operating revenue

01.01.2010 - 31.12.2010  01.01.2009 - 31.12.2009

Provisions for damages claims released 18 941 4 968
Other provisions released 2039 1449
Reimbursement of expenses by an insurance company 3700 9 196
Settlement of income due to subsidies and connedé&es 6 599 6 317
Damages, fines, penalties 4 936 11733
Unassigned impairment losses reversed 10 162 18 379
Property, plant and equipment received free of gbar 20 301 6 808
Other operating revenue 17 614 19 749
TOTAL 84 292 78 599

Other operating expense

01.01.2010 - 31.12.2010  01.01.2009 - 31.12.2009

Provisions for damages claims recognized (38 777) (12 028)
Other provisions recognized (31 543) (6 908)
Impairment loss on receivables (11 572) (16 906)
Irrecoverable receivables written off (10 112) (19 460)
Impairment loss on inventories (3197) (2 170)
Costs of litigation (8 464) (3330)
Trade union related expenses (1 245) (1 305)
Write-down of goodwill (385) (16 832)
Other operating expenses (30 786) (33023)
TOTAL (136 081) (111 962)
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35. Financial revenue

01.01.2010 - 31.12.2010

01.01.20009 - 31.12.2009

Interest income 60 806 67 020
Forex differences - 1874
- forex differences on loans and credit facilities - 783
- other forex differenct - 1091
Revaluation of financial assets measured at fairevéhrougt

profit or loss 77 969 93 294
Liabilities due to purchase of other shares in gliases - 1691
Other financial revenue 1718 6 491
TOTAL 140 493 170 370

36. Financial expenses

01.01.2010 - 31.12.2010

Interest expense

- interest expense on loans and credit facilities
- finance lease expenses

- other interest

Forex differences

- forex differences on loans and credit facilities
- other forex differences

Costs of discounted liabilities due to employeedfiés
Liabilities due to purchase of other shares in Elidses
Other financial expenses

01.01.2009 - 31.12.2009

TOTAL

(10 661) (11 068)
(4 506) (7 684)
(354) (193)
(5 801) (3 191)
(1023) -
1742 -
(2 765) -
(24 817) (21 737)
(2 844) -
(1 658) (215)
(41 003) (33 020)

37. Income tax %

01.01.2010 - 31.12.2010

Current tax (210 144)
Deferred tax 36 309
TOTAL (173 835)

01.01.2009 - 31.12.2009

(155 686)
16 240
(139 446)

The income tax on gross profit before tax differsni the theoretical amount resulting from applimati

of the nominal tax rate applicable to the Grougssolidated profit in the following manner:
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01.01.2010 - 31.12.2010 01.01.2009 - 31.12.2009

Profit/loss before tax 813 216 653 05¢

Tax at 19% rate (154 511) (124 081)
Costs not classified as tax-deductible expensesgeent differences) *19% (56 779) (26 640)
Non-taxable revenue (permanent differences * 19%) 39 504 11 83¢

Other *19% (2 049) (563)
Amount charged to profit or loss due to income tax (173 835) (139 446)
38. Dividend

A decision regarding the payment of dividend fag timancial year shall be made by General Sharehsld
Meeting in 2011. the Management Board intends twp@se using 30% of 2010 profit for the dividend

payment.

On 20 April 2010 the General Meeting of Sharehaldef ENEA S.A. adopted Resolution No. 7
on distribution of the net profit for the reportipgriod from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 200@reby
PLN 167,748 thousand was allocated to dividend pmennfor the shareholders (PLN 0.38 per share).
the dividend had been paid by the balance sheet dat

On 30 June 2009 the Ordinary Shareholders’ MeatfrigNEA S.A. adopted Resolution No. 4 on distribati

of the net profit for the reporting period from aniiary 2008 to 31 December 2008, under which threuam

of PLN 203,064 thousand was allocated to dividemagngent to shareholders (dividend per share was
PLN 0.46). the dividend had been paid by the balaheet date.

Pursuant to the Act on profit-sharing paymentsompanies wholly owned by the State Treasury of éeDwer
1995, ENEA S.A. made quarterly profit-sharing pagtagdefined as the gross profit less the curmectdrne
tax) in the amount of 15%, which is recognized agddnd payment. the Company ceased to be subject t
the above obligation at the end of the month incivitihe capital increase resulting from the pulséie of shares
carried out in 2008 (13 January 2009) was regidtém since the end of January 2009.

The value of the obligatory profit-sharing paymemizde for the period from 1 January to 31 Janu@p 2vas
PLN 216 thousand.

39. Earnings per share

01.01.2010 - 31.12.2010  01.01.2009 - 31.12.2009

Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Rare 639 262 513 589
Number of ordinary shares 441 442 578 441 442 578
Net earnings per share (in PLN per share) 1,45 1,16
Diluted earnings per share (in PLN) 1,45 1,16

The notes presented on pages 11-99 constituteegrah part of the consolidated financial statersent
82



ENEA Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements prepared inviite EU-IFRS for the year ended 31 December 2010

(if not stated otherwise, all amounts in PLN'000)

40. Related party transactions

The companies of the Capital Group conclude thHevahg related party transactions:
= The Capital Group’s constituent entities — transastare eliminated at the consolidation stage;
= transactions concluded between the Group and Membifeits governing bodies fall within three
categories:
» those resulting from employment contracts with Memsbof the Management Board of
the Parent and related to the appointment of MesnbeSupervisory Boards;
» those resulting from loans from the Company’s SdB&nefit Fund granted to Members of
the Management Board of the Parent and Supervidoayds employed by ENEA S.A.;
» resulting from other civil law agreements;

= Transactions with entities whose shares are hettidoptate Treasury of the Republic of Poland.

Transactions with members of the Group’s goverbodies:

Supervisory Board of the

Management Board of the Company Company
01.01.2010 - 01.01.2009 - 01.01.2010- 01.01.20009 -
No. Item 31.12.201 31.12.200 31.12.201 31.12.200
1. Remuneration under employment contracts 1298 1226 } )
2 Remuneration due to appointment of membefs
" management and supervisory bodies - - 195 350
3 Remuneratio due to the positior helc in supervisor
" boards of subsidiari 415 216 - -
4 Remuneration due to other employee benefits
(electricity allowance) 137 318 ) )
TOTAL 1850 1760 195 350

Members of the Management Board and SupervisorydBai@ subject to the provisions of the Act of 3réa
2000 on remuneration of persons managing certajal lentities (companies with the majority intereét
the State Treasury). Pursuant to the Act, the maxinmonthly remuneration cannot exceed six average
monthly remunerations in the enterprise sector,lugieg profit bonuses in Q4 of the preceding year,
announced by the President of the Central Stals@dfice. the amount of the annual bonus cannceed

three average monthly remunerations in the yearepliag the bonus granting.
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Transactions related to loans from the Company&gs&enefits Fund:

No. Company body Balance as of Granted on Maturing on Balance as of
01.01.2010 01.01.2010 31.12.2010 31.12.2010
1. Management Board 21 - (21)
2. Supervisory Board 29 11 (11) 29
TOTAL 50 11 (32) 29
Balance as of Granted on Maturing on Balance as of
No. Company body
01.01.2009 01.01.2009 31.12.2009 31.12.2009
1. Management Board 42 - (21) 21
2. Supervisory Board 7 a7 (25) 29
TOTAL 49 47 (46) 50

Other transactions resulting from civil-law agreenseconcluded between the Parent Company and Member
of the Parent’s Bodies relate only to private ubeampany’s cars by Members of the Management Board

of ENEA S.A.

The Group also concludes business transactions wiitities of the central and local administration
and entities controlled by the State Treasury efRlepublic of Poland.
The transactions concern mainly:

* purchase of coal, electricity and property rightsulting from certificates of origin as regards
renewable energy and energy produced in the CHRmysransmission and distribution services
provided by the Group to companies whose sharelseddeby the State Treasury;

« sale of electricity, distribution services, connaatto the grid and other related fees, providethbo
to central and local administration bodies (salend users) and entities whose shares are held by
the State Treasury (wholesale and retail sale dousers);

Such transactions are concluded under arm’s letegtiis and their conditions do not differ from thegplied
in transactions with other entities. the Group daes keep a register which would allow it to aggeg

the values of all transactions with state instito§ and entities whose shares are held by the Btassury.

41. Concession agreements on provision of public seres

The key business activities carried out by the @@hpGroup include generation, distribution and é&rad

of electricity.

In line with the provisions of the Energy Law, 06 Rovember 1998 the Parent obtained the followimg t
concessions to carry out its business activities:
» concession for trading in electricity, granted éot0-year period, i.e. until 30 November 2008;
» concession for electricity transmission and distiilm, granted also for a 10-year period, i.e. lunti
30 November 2008;
ENEA Operator Sp. z 0.0. holds a concession fdribigion of electricity effective until 1 July 201
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On 23 April 2007 ENEA S.A. filed arequest to the$tdent of the Energy Regulatory Office to extend
the validity of the concession for trading in efagity. On 5 October 2007 ENEA S.A. received a dixi on

extension of the validity of the concession foding in electricity until 31 December 2025.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Energy Law, tresident of the Energy Regulatory Office is resjudador
granting concessions, exercising supervision overgy companies as well as approval of tariffs. rgye
prices, fee rates and the principles for their igptibn laid down in the Tariff are approved by fresident

of the Energy Regulatory Office based on admintisteadecisions.

While approving the Tariff, the President of theeEgy Regulatory Office verifies its compliance with
the following legal acts:
» the Energy Law of 10 April 1997 (Dz. U. of 2006 189, item 625 as amended);
» Ordinance of the Minister of Economy of 2 April 200n detailed principles for tariff establishment
and calculation as well as the principles for seténts in electricity trading (Dz. U. of 2007,
No. 128, item 895 as amended);
» Ordinance of the Minister of Economy of 4 May 2007 detailed principles of the power system
operation (Dz.U. of 2007 no. 93 item 623 as ame)jded
» Act on principles of financing the costs incurreg groducers following early termination of long-
term contracts for the sale of power and elecyrioft29 June 2007 (Dz.U. of 2007 no. 130 item 905
as amended);
» Announcement of the President of ERO No. 27/200@ mSeptember 2008 regarding clarification
of doubts on calculation of the transition fee éttlements with power consumers;
» Announcement of the President of ERA no. 31/201@%0ctober 2010 regarding 2011 transition

fee rates.

ENEA S.A. and ENEA Operator Sp. z o0.0. calculateirthariff based on costs regarded as legitimate by
the President of the Energy Regulatory Office abb aemargins (for electricity trading) as welltaansferred,
operating costs, balance sheet difference costsretndn on equity (for distribution) planned to éarned

in the subsequent tariff period.

Pursuant to a decision issued by the PresideriteolEhergy Regulatory Office ENEA S.A. was releafsech

the obligation to submit a Tariff for the A, B af@group customers. On 13 December 2007 a resolutamn
adopted by the Management Board of ENEA S.A. orodhiction of a new tariff for the A, B and C group
customers as of 1 January 2008. On 2 January 2@0Bresident of the Energy Regulatory Office apgdov
the household electricity tariff for ENEA S.A. (remhold and prepaid G tariff groups).

On 12 January 2010 the electricity tariff of ENE#r 2010 was approved by the President of the Energy
Regulatory Office.
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On 17 December 2010 the electricity tariff of ENEgx 2010 was approved by the President of the Bnerg
Regulatory Office.

The core business of Elektrownia “Kozienice” S.Awvodlves generation of electricity and heat based

on concessions granted by the President of ERO.

Concession for electricity generation:

No. WEE/11-ZTO/1271/W/OWA/2007/RW of 31 August 20ff generation of electricity in devices
of total installed capacity amounting to 2820 MW.

(The Concession became effective as at 31 Au@ft or the period until 31 December 2025).

* No. WEE/11-ZTO-B/1271/W/3/2008/ARS of 24 January0dor generation of electricity in a source
named Elektrownia ,Kozienice” S.A. with total inB&m capacity of 2 820 MW and total generating
capacity of 2 880 MW.

The concession expands business activities of tielekia “Kozienice” S.A. the change regards
cogeneration of electricity in blocks of generatoapacity amounting to 535 MW and 560 MW during
combustion of conventional fuel (hard and stovd)¢c@ad cogeneration of electricity in eight blockish
generating capacity of 1-215 MW, 1-220 MW, 6-225 MiVprocess of conventional fuel combustion
(hard coal and heating oil) and biomass.

(The concession for the period from 24 January826B1 December 2025.)
* No. WEE/11-ZTO-C/1271/W/OWA/2010/RW of 16 July 20idr generation of electricity in a source

named Elektrownia ,Kozienice” S.A. with total inléal capacity of 2 820 MW and total generating
capacity of 2 880 MW. the change regards removacak and bark from the combusted biomass

and a change in the related documentation.

* No. WEE/11-ZTO-D/1271/W/OWA/2010/RW of 16 July 2016r generation of electricity in a source
named Elektrownia ,Kozienice” S.A. with total ink&m capacity of 2 820 MW and total generating

capacity of 2 880 MW. the change regards the doatettien — new biomass scales.

e No. WEE/11-ZTO-E/1271/W/OWA/2010/RW of 10 Novemb2010 for generation of electricity
in a source named Elektrownia ,Kozienice” S.A. withtal installed capacity of 2 820 MW and total

generating capacity of 2 880 MW. the change regdrelslocumentation.

Concession for trading in electricity:

* No. OEE/334/1271/W/1/2002/MWof 21 December 2002olming trading of electricity for the needs

of consumers located on the territory of the Rejoulfl Poland.

(The concession is valid for the period from luiag 2003 to 1 January 2013.)
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Concession for heat production:

* No. WCC/256-ZTO/1271/W/OWA/2007/RW of 31 August Z00egarding cogeneration of heat
in a power plant located irswierze Goérne, with the total heat generating capacity 266 MW
(from 31 August 2007).

(The Concession became effective as of 31 AuddBT Zor the period until 31 December 2025).

* No. WCC/256-ZTO-B/1271/W/3/2008/ARS of 24 Januafp& for cogeneration of heat in the source
named Elektrownia ,Kozienice” S.A. with the totadt generating capacity of 266 MW1. the heat comes
from combustion of conventional fuel (hard coal &®@ting oil) in two steam boilers providing steaim
two sets of turbines generating heat and from catidou of conventional fuel (hard coal, heating oil)
or from combustion of the fuel and biomass in eigtedam boilers providing heat to eight turbines
cogenerating heat.

The concession results from extension of businesiwittes of Elektrownia “Kozienice” S.A. with

production of heat from biomass combustion.

(The concession for the period from 24 Januar826B1 December 2025.)
* No. WCC/256-ZTO-C/1271/W/OWA-2010/RW of 16 July Z0Iregarding cogeneration of heat

in a power plant located $wierze Gorne, with the total heat generating capacitg6s MW. the change

regards removal of cork and bark from the combubtethass and a change in the related documentation.

* No. WCC/256-ZTO-D/1271/W/OWA-2010/RW of 16 July ZDIregarding cogeneration of heat
in a power plant located $wierze Gorne, with the total heat generating capacit®6s MW. the change

regards the documentation — new biomass scales.

* No. WCC/256-ZTO-E/1271/W/OWA-2010/RW of 10 Novemi#d10 regarding cogeneration of heat
in a power plant located Bwierze Gorne, with the total heat generating capacitg6s MW. the change

regards the documentation.

Concession for heat transmission:

* No. PCC/ 269-ZTO/1271/W/OWA/2007/RW of 31 August0ZOfor transmission and distribution

of internally produced heat through two heatingvueks inSwierze Gérne.

(The concession for the period from 31 August 2@031 December 2025.)

42. Long-term contracts on the sale of power and eledtity (LTC)

As the European Commission recognized long-terntraots for the sale of power and electricity (LTC)
concluded with a state entity — PSE S.A. as disadtbpublic aid, the Polish Parliament passed amamtder
to eliminate such contracts. Pursuant to the pravisof the Act on principles of financing the cstcurred
by producers following early termination of longste contracts for the sale of power and electricity
of 29 June 2007 (“LTC Termination Act”), since 12008 the Group (Elektrownia “Kozienice” S. Aas
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been entitled to compensation for stranded costdtneg from early termination of long-term contrmdased
on the aforementioned Act, the Group will be eatitto compensation until 2014.

LTC are settled as follows:
- by 31 August each year companies file application advance payments relating to the settlements;

- by 31 July of the following year the President tbe Energy Regulatory Office determines the value
of the annual stranded cost adjustment (adjustofeadvance payments);

- by 31 August of the year following the end of #ustment period the President of the Energy Réany
Office determines the value of the final adjustm@ait August 2015 in the case of the Group).

The Group has developed a calculation model basedvidich it applies to the President of the Energy
Regulatory Office for advance payments and annatlesents. Determination of the amounts due is not
straightforward, as it depends on a number of facincluding interpretation of statutory provisson

The Group decided to recognize as revenue onhaith@unts resulting from the decision on the annual
orphaned cost adjustment.

al/ 2008 settlements

In 2008 Elektrownia “Kozienice” S. A. received adea payments for orphaned costs of PLN 93,132
thousand from Zarglca Rozliczé S. A. the amount of PLN 80,976 thousand was reizegnin the 2008
financial statements as revenue due to compensaflon5 August 2009 Elektrownia “Kozienice” S.A
received a Decision of the President of the EneRgpgulatory Office dated 31 July 2009 determining
the amount of the annual orphaned cost adjustmentgdvance payments received earlier from athra
Rozliczewn S. A.) for Elektrownia “Kozienice” S. A. for 2008Pursuant to the Decision, the amount
of the annual orphaned cost adjustment (i.e. theuatmof advance payments to be returned to adima
Rozliczeh S.A.) was PLN 89,537 thousand, which implies teaenue due to compensation for 2008 is lower
than the amount of PLN 77,381 thousand recognizedElektrownia “Kozienice” S.A. in its financial
statements for the year 2008 (and thus, in thedatimiaded financial statements of the ENEA Capited @).

According to the Management Board of ElektrowniaoZienice” S.A. and ENEA S.A., the majority
of assumptions made by the President of the EnRegulatory Office in the Decision and the interptiein

of the Act on principles of financing the costsumed by producers following early termination ohg-term
contracts for the sale of power and electricity28f June 2007 are incorrect or inappropriately agpli
Consequently, on 19 August 2009 Elektrownia “Komeh S.A. filed an appeal to the Regional Court
in Warsaw - Court of Competition and Consumer Ritite. the appeal also contained an application for
suspension of decision enforcement until the casdecided. On 23 September 2009, the Regional Court
in Warsaw - Court of Competition and Consumer Rttita issued a decision whereby it suspended
enforcement of the decision appealed against irsxof the amount of PLN 44,768 thousand and dsgdis
the motion for the further amount. Therefore, onS#ptember 2009, the Management Board of Elekt@wni
.Kozienice” S. A. decided to return the advance rpagt in the amount resulting from the Decision

of the President of the Energy Regulatory Officeawthad not been suspended by the Court.
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On 2 October 2009 Elektrownia “Kozienice” S. A. ¢rdl a complaint against the above decision to thetC

of Appeals in Warsaw, VI Civil Division. On 19 Mag010 the Court of Appeals changed the decision
of the Court of Competition and Consumer Protectidr23 September 2009 and suspended enforcement
of the decision of the President of the EnergyuRagry Office of 31 July 2009 on the annual stechdost
adjustment in whole. the Court of Appeals emphakifeat the Court of Competition and Consumer
Protection did not have legal grounds to refusetiglasuspension of the enforcement of the decision.
Therefore, if it had found grounds for suspendimforcement of the decision, it should have suspegnde
the enforcement of the decision in whole. Consetiyilenn 27 May 2010 Elektrownia “Kozienice” S. A.
requested Zamzlca Rozliczé S. A. to return PLN 40,577 thousand with interdsé. However, Zanzica
Rozliczenr refused to do so claiming that the only legal $&si the return might be a change of the decisfon
the President of the Energy Regulatory Office oflglly 2009. On 5 July 2010 Elektrownia “Kozienic®"A.
filed the final pre-trial demand for payment of PUR,577 thousand with interest due to Zdica Rozliczé

S. A.ln a letter dated 12 July 2010 Zadra Rozliczé S. A. upheld its original decision and refusedeturn

the amount in question.

The Management Board of Elektrownia “Kozienice” Sdecided not to recognize further revenue from
compensation and to adjust the revenue from conapiensrecognized in 2008 by PLN 77,380 thousand.
the above adjustment was recognized in the statesfi@mprehensive income for the period from ludem

to 31 December 2009 as sales revenue (amount redthee sales revenue). If in the future the Casstiés

a decision on the appeal against the decision efPtiesident of the Energy Regulatory Office obligin
Elektrownia “Kozienice” S.A. to return an amountder than that specified in the decision of the idesst

of the Energy Regulatory Office, it will increasgeetfinancial profit of the Group.

b/ 2009 settlements

On 29 July 2010 the President of the Energy RegujaOffice issued a decision whereby the amount
of the annual orphaned cost adjustment for 200®eareceived by Elektrownia “Kozienice” S. A. from

Zarzmdca Rozliczé S. A. is PLN 15,580 thousand. This decision i alsfavorable for the Group and on 17
August 2010 the Group appealed against it to th&tCaf Competition and Consumer Protection, Rediona
Court in Warsaw. On 30 September 2010 Elektrowidazienice” S. A. received the amount of annual
adjustment for 2009 of PLN 15,580 thousand fromza@dgca Rozliczé S. A. the above amount has been

recognized in these condensed interim consolid@itadcial statements as sales revenue.

Assuming that the decisions obtained by Elektrowtazienice” S.A. regarding the appeals against
the decisions issued by the President of the EnBeagulatory Office determining the amounts of thaual
adjustments for 2008 and 2009 are favorable foCiimpany:

- the annual adjustment for 2009 is estimated & P11,100 thousand (+);

In 2010 the Company requested an advance paymeové& orphaned costs of O PLN.
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On 1 December 2010, Court of Competition and ComsulRrotection held a hearing regarding LTC 2008.
the Court decided to adjourn the case until therCofi Appeals issues a valid decision whether Zdca
Rozliczeh may receive the status of a concerned party iptheeedings.

On 19 January 2011 the court heard case XVII Amzl®3concerning the complaint of Elektrownia
“Kozienice” against the decision of the Presidehthe Energy Regulatory Office of 26 July 2010 sifig
access to some documents included in the files®@2009 LCT. the Court dismissed the complaintniebr
issues and procedures are still being carried out.

As no judicial decisions have been issued witheesfo the appeals filed by the Company, the poigito
determine the probability of obtaining the aforetr@red amounts (estimated based on the current lecige
and available data) in relation to the annual steancost adjustments is limited.

Therefore, the amount of revenue disclosed in tlessolidated financial statements has been datedni

using the best knowledge of the Management Boaddraline with the prudence principle.

43. Future payments due to the right of perpetual usufuct acquired for a consideration and free of charge

as well as lease, rental and operating lease agresmts

The future minimum liabilities arising from the hig of perpetual usufruct apply to the remainingnter
of agreements for the use of land (40-99 yearsgy&ne recognized in accordance with EU IFRS asatipg

leases, where the Group acts as a lessee:

31.12.2010 31.12.2009
Up to 1 year 8 148 3503
1-5years 26 253 14 779
Over 5 years 292 901 265 479
327 302 283761

44, Future liabilities under contracts concluded as ofhe balance sheet date

Contractual obligations assumed as of the balameetslate, not yet recognized in the balance sheet:

31.12.2010 31.12.2009

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 321 744 415 83:
Acquisition of intangible assets 8 459 12 547

330203 428 38(
45. Employment

12 months ended 12 months ended
31.12.2010 31.12.2009

Blue-collar positions 5395 5 53€
White-collar positions 4 838 4822
TOTAL 10 233 10 35¢

The data in the table are presented in FTE. Maragesitions are qualified as white collar ones.
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46. Explanations of the seasonal and cyclical nature tfie Capital Group’s business

Sales of electricity during the year are subjecdasonal fluctuations. They increase during theerimonths
and decrease in summer. This depends on the tetupeemnd the length of the day. the extent of flatibns
depends on low temperature and shorter days inewias well as higher temperature and longer days
in summer. Seasonal sales of electricity apply tmose considerable degree to small clients (43.82%

of the sales value), rather than to the indusseator.

47. Contingent liabilities and proceedings before coud, arbitration or public administration bodies

47.1.Pending proceedings before common courts

Actions brought by the Group

Actions which ENEA S.A. and ENEA Operator Sp. z.dwought to common courts refer to claims for
receivables due to provision of electricity (the-called electricity cases) and claims for otheeneables -
illegal consumption of electricity, connectionstte grid and other specialized services (the sled¢alon-

electricity cases).

The majority of actions which Elektrownia “KozieritS.A. brought to common courts refer to claims fo
receivables due to default under freight forwardmantracts and liquidated damages from the biomass
suppliers.

As of 31 December 2010, the total of 6,910 casesdirt by the Group were pending before common sourt
for the total amount of PLN 44,571 thousand (6,688es for the total amount of PLN 38,496 thousandfa

31 December 2009).

None of the cases can significantly affect theupte profit/loss.

Actions brought against the Group

Actions against the Group are brought both by @édtaind legal persons. They mainly refer to sucheissas
compensation for interrupted delivery of electyicitidentification of illegal electricity consumptio
and compensation for the Group’s use of real ptgpahere electrical devices are located. the Group
considers actions concerning non-contractual usesalf property not owned by the Group as partitylar
important (note 47.4).

Court proceedings against Elektrownia “KozieniceASare also related to claims of formemployees in
salaries and compensations for the total amouBRtLdf 642 thousand, claims of Gospodarstwo Ogrodnicze
Ryczywole Kamila Lewek Wéhiewska Jacek Pospiszyl spotka cywilna. The claimmcerns remedying
damages resulting from the operation of the plambhem by Elektrownia located on the land adjacent to
the plot of Gospodarstwo Ogrodnicze, by way of pgyPLN 5,082 thousand. Other claims include e.g.

the claim of Centrum Konsultingu Menatskiego Gordion Sp. z 0.0 to institute amicablecpedings -

The notes presented on pages 11-99 constituteegrah part of the consolidated financial statersent
91



ENEA Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements prepared inviite EU-IFRS for the year ended 31 December 2010

(if not stated otherwise, all amounts in PLN'000)

the amount claimed is PLN 5,018 thousand. During pifoceedings held on 17 June 2010 no amicable
settlement was reached, and Centrum Konsultinguaenskiego Gordion Sp. z 0.0. brought the case to
the District Court in Lublin.

As of 31 December 2010 there were 539 cases permifiye common courts which have been brought
against the Group for the total amount of PLN 6&,9thousand (351 cases for the total amount
of PLN 25,102 thousand as of 31 December 2009)\i$loms related to the court cases have been pesben

in note 30.

47.2. Arbitration proceedings

As of 31 December 2010 there were no pending prhiege before competent arbitration bodies.

47.3.Proceedings before public administration bodies

Pursuant to a decision of the President of thec®ffif Competition and Consumer Protection of 12&aper
2008 which closed the proceedings for chargingosusts with a double subscription fee for Januar§820
ENEA S.A. was obliged to pay afine of PLN 160 thand. the Company appealed against the decision
on 30 September 2008. On 31 August 2009 the Relgi@uairt in Warsaw — Court of Competition
and Consumer Protection reduced the fine to PLNhbisand. On 25 September 2009, ENEA appealed
against the judgment issued by the Court of Coripetiand Consumer Protection to the Court of Appeal
in Warsaw applying for reversal of the decisiominole. On 27 April 2010 the Court reversed thegjuént

and remanded the case for reconsideration. On @idada 2011 the Court of Competition and Consumer
Protection upheld the PLN 10 thousand fine imposedhe Company. Currently the Company is awaiting
written justification of the decision. Based onaalysis of the justification the Company will ddeiwhether

to make an appeal.

Pursuant to a decision of the President of thec®ffif Competition and Consumer Protection of 30t&aper
2008 which closed the proceedings for abuse of etaposition by not keeping deadlines related to
connection decisions and determining the impat¢hefdesigned wind power station on the electrisyistem,
ENEA Operator Sp. z 0.0. was obliged to pay a tihd’LN 11,626 thousand. ENEA Operator Sp. z 0.0.
lodged an appeal against the decision. On 23 M20dl® the Court of Competition and Consumer Praiacti
dismissed the appeal lodged by the Company. Ory5210 the Company’s representative appealed again
the decision By the date of preparation of these consolidatednitial statements the appeal had not been

examined.

On 27 November 2008 the President of the EnergyuR&gy Office concluded that ENEA failed to comply
with the obligation to purchase electricity proddiée the CHP system in 2006, imposing a fine of P1,B94
thousand. On 17 December 2008, ENEA filed an dpfeahe Regional Court in Warsaw - the Court
of Competition and Consumer Protection. On 15 Ddman2009 the Court of Competition and Consumer

Protection issued a judgment favorable for the Camgpchanging the decision of the President ofhergy
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Regulatory Office of 27 November 2008 and discaritig the administrative proceedings. the Presidént
the Energy Regulatory Office appealed against #dwistbn to the Court of Appeals in Warsaw. On 24
November 2010 (VI ACa 327/10) the Court of Appealarsed the decision of the Regional Court in Warsa

- Court of Competition and Consumer Protection bf[december 2009 appealed against the President of
the Energy Regulatory Office and remanded the é@seeconsideration and settling the costs of hgeal

proceedings.

On 28 December 2009 the President of the EnergylRegy Office issued a decision on ENEA's failuoe
comply with the obligation to purchase electricgyoduced in the CHP system in the first half of 200
imposing a fine of PLN 2,150 thousand on the Corgp&m 19 January 2010, ENEA filed an appeal against
the decision of the President of the Energy RegnfaDffice to the Regional Court in Warsaw - theu@oof

Competition and Consumer Protection.

On 11 February 2009 Elektrownia Kozienice appliedhe Customs Office in Radom for ascertainment and
refund of overpaid excise on electricity for thentits from January 2006 to December 2008 in the amou

of PLN 694,6 million with return correction.

On 24 November 2009 the Company applied to thedustOffice in Radom for ascertainment and refund
of overpaid excise on electricity for subsequennths, i.e. January 2009 and February 2009 in theuam

of PLN 34,6 million, including PLN 247 thousandefcise on renewable energy.

Excise adjustments, excluding excise on renewaldggg, stem from the differences in the Polish &t

regulations concerning tax on electricity in theipe from 1 January 2006 to 28 February 2009.

Proceedings related to overpaid tax for 2006: thmg@any appealed to the Provincial Administrativau€o
in Warsaw against the decisions of the Director tbé Customs Chamber in Warsaw who sustained
the decisions of the Head of the Radom Customs®ffihereby the Company was not entitled to a return
of overpaid excise for the particular months of @@Mhd the amounts specified in the original taurretvere

correct.

Proceedings related to overpaid tax for 2007: tben@any appealed to the Provincial Administrativeu€o
in Warsaw against the decisions of the Director tbé Customs Chamber in Warsaw who sustained
the decisions of the Head of the Radom Customs®ffihereby the Company was not entitled to a return
of overpaid excise for the particular months of 2@Mhd the amounts specified in the original taurretvere

correct.

Proceedings related to overpaid tax for 2008 -Hbad of the Customs Office in Radom issued decssion
determining the overpaid amount of excise only wihpect to renewable electricity for individual miits

of 2008 in the total amount of PLN 2.6 million. A= the period when Polish regulations were incstesit

with those of the EC, he refused returning overgaidand specified tax liabilities in amounts resllidy

the excise on energy from renewable resourcesh®périod in question. the Company appealed against
the decisions to the Director of the Customs ChanivéVarsaw who sustained the decisions of the Head
of the Radom Customs Office whereby the Company m@sentitled to areturn of overpaid excise for

particular months in 2008 and specifying the tability for the months at amounts resulting frora thitial
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returns of the Company, less excise on green enBmggf 31 December 2010 the Company had appealed t
the Provincial Administrative Court against theidiems of the Director of the Tax Chamber in Warsaw

concerning January 2008, February 2008 and ApfiB20

Proceedings related to overpaid tax for Januan8280@l February 2009 — the Head of the Customs @ffic
in Radom issued decisions determining the overgaitbunt of excise only with respect to renewable
electricity for January 2009 and February 2009 BN 247 thousand. As for the period when Polish
regulations were inconsistent with those of the BE, refused returning overpaid tax and specified ta
liabilities in amounts reduced by the excise onrgydrom renewable resources for the period in joes

the Company appealed against the decisions toitieetbr of the Customs Chamber in Warsaw who susthi
the decisions of the Head of the Radom Customs®ffihereby the Company was not entitled to a return
of overpaid excise for particular months in 200@ apecifying the tax liability for the months at aumts

resulting from the initial returns of the Compal®gs excise on green energy.

Elektrownia ,Kozienice” S.A. received decisions thie Marshal of the Mazowieckie Province concerning
the use of the environment - emission of gas anmtefufor the | and 1l half of 2008. the decision 13posed
a fine of PLN 2,888 thousand, decision 133, of P78 thousand. Elektrownia ,Kozienice” S.A. apeeal
against the above decisions to the Self-governmg@pieal Court in Warsaw. the Self-government Appeal

Court sustained the decisions of the Marshal oMheowieckie Region.

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, there weny other proceedings before the public adinatien
bodies as of 31 December 2010.
A vast majority of the proceedings have been iastid at the request of the Group, which has appbed
relevant administration bodies for:

* instigation of administrative enforcement in orderrecover receivables for illegal consumption

of electricity;

* building permits with respect to new facilities amddernization of the existing ones;

e permit for occupation of a road lane by electrig@guipment;

* determination of fees for perpetual usufruct ofifan

* designation of land for electrical devices.
Some of the proceedings are complaints submittegbternment and local government administrationiésd
or administrative courts with respect to decisimssied in the above cases.
The result of these proceedings is unlikely to hagggnificant impact on the Group's net profit.
Due to the nature of operations of ENEA Operator Sp.o. (operations in the regulated monopoly regrk
there have been numerous court actions broughtnstgéine Company by the President of the Energy
Regulatory Office and the President of the Offioe €ompetition and Consumer Protection at the rsique

of buyers of electricity supplied by the Group.
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The President of the Energy Regulatory Office, &&yacentral administration body appointed to ratgl
operations of companies in the energy sector esetlisputes related to a refusal to conclude agratsnior

connection to the grid or provision of transmisssenvices, or to the provisions thereof.

As of 31 December 2010 the President of the En&ggulatory Office carried out a series of explanato
and administrative proceedings against the Group.

The result of these proceedings is unlikely to heagggnificant impact on the Group's net profit.

47.4. Risk related to the legal status of property usedybthe Group

The risk related to the legal status of the propased by the Group results from the fact thatGheup does

not have all legal titles to use the land wheregmaission networks and the related devices aretddca
the Group may have to incur costs related to noriraotual use of property in the future.

Considering the legal status, there is arisk ditamhal costs related to compensation claims fon-n

contractual use of land, rental fee or, rarelyinetarelated to the change of facility location {oemg land to

its previous condition).

Claims against the Group are claims for paymennfmnsation for non-contractual use of property,aimipg
the value of property, lost benefits) and claimsdiscontinuing infringement of ownership righte(dand to
remove devices).

Decisions related to these issues are importarth@g considerably affect the Group’s strategy talsar
persons who lodged pre-trial claims related to devilocated on their land in the past and the ambrao

the legal status of devices in case of new investsne

The Group recognized a provision for all claimsded by owners of property located near transmission
networks and devices based on best estimates @hnditpres necessary to settle the claims adopted by
the Management Board. the Group does not recogmaesions for possible claims which have not bgen
filed by owners of land used non-contractually. $4gle claim amounts may be significant for the Gxou
considering the area of non-contractually used kahdre the Group’s transmission networks or thateel
devices are located. the Group does not keep amydend it has no knowledge of the legal statukaiod,
therefore is it unable to reliably estimate the mmasm amount of possible claims arising from nonicactual

use of land.

47.5. Risk related to participation in costs incurred dueto the use of woodland managed by the National Fests for

the needs of electricity lines

On 29 November 2006 a meeting initiated by the Meri of Environment was attended by representatives
of the National Forests, the Ministry of State ®uwg, PSE-Operator Sp. z 0.0. and Polskie Towanzyst
Przesylu i Rozdziatu Energii Elektrycznej representistribution companies. the National Forestsipgmsal

to conclude agreements for the lease of land whterdines are located was not accepted. Conseguentl

a more general solution based on legislative craisyeequired. This year the Ministry of Economgpared
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a draft act regulating the use of land managedhbyNational Forests by energy companies if trarsons
and distribution electricity lines are located aistland. the draft assumes that the use of sughwauld be
based on transmission easement against paymentf & date of the consolidated financial statement
the Act amending the act on forests and act onremwiental protection had been passed by both chambe
of the Parliament and approved by the Presidentoiting to the Act, the consideration for transioiss
easement would be equal to the amount of localstael charges paid by the State Forests for tlk lan

included in the easement.

In preparation for implementation of the statutprgvisions, the Group carried out a physical coafnand
managed by the State Forests where elements ehthrgy distribution system owned by the Company are
located and created a relevant provision as destiibNote 30.

Regardless of the aforementioned actions aimecdemérgl regulation of the legal status of land owhgd
the National Forests, individual forest districtficds lodged claims against the Group due to it®-no

contractual use of land. the claims have been atedior in the provision referred to in Note 30.

48. CO, emission rights

As at 31 December 2010, the status of carbon déosidission rights was as follows:

Volume thousand tons

CO2 emission rights for 2010

granted 9637
applied (10 836)
purchased 3118
sold -
Balance as of 31 December 2010 191¢

As at 31 December 2009, the status of carbon diosidission rights was as follows:

Volume thousand tons

CO2 emission rights for 2009
brought forward

granted 9712
applied (10 760)
purchased 1200
sold

Balance as of 31 December 2! 152

An increase regarding reduction of the emissio20f0 and the years to follow, if any, may signifita
impact the Group’s profitability.

49. Opening of negotiations concerning acquisition of &@pot Elektrowni Patnéw-Adamow-Konin S.A.

In 2008 the Parent started negotiations with ticeiver in bankruptcy of Elektrim S.A. concerning
the acquisition of 45.95% of shares in Zespot Eekhi Patnow-Adaméw-Konin S.A. (ZE PAK). Being

interested in acquisition of generation assets owneZE PAK, ENEA S.A. joined proceedings commenced
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by the Ministry of Treasury (MT, the Seller) on Elfuary 2010 (the date of announcement publication)
regarding acquisition of a holding in (i) ZE PAKcatnting for 50% of the share capital of ZE PAK,
(ii) Kopalnia Wegla Brunatnego ,Adaméw” S. A. (KWB Adamoéw) accoungfifor 85% of the share capital
of KWB Adamoéw and (iii) Kopalnia Wyla Brunatnego ,Konin” in Kleczew S. A. (KWB Konirgccounting

for 85% of the share capital of KWB Konin. Pursumthe transaction timeline set by the Seller, BNEA.
submitted the preliminary offer to acquire the igin ZE PAK, KWB Adaméw and KWB Konin and was
qualified to the due diligence stage. Following the diligence of legal, finance, tax, technical
and environmental aspects of the above companeEAES.A. withdrew from further stages of the tender

announced by MT and did not submit a binding offer.

50. Changes in excise

On 1 March 2009, the amendment of the Excise TaxoA@3 January 2004 came into force. Polish excise
regulations required an amendment in order to cgmyth the EU laws. Based on the amendment, thesexc
obligation arises when electricity is supplied todecustomers (not at the time of electricity prdum.
Consequently, since 1 March 2009 ENEA S.A. has batdiged to pay excise (before it was paid by

Elektrownia “Kozienice” S.A.).

On 12 February 2009 the European Court of Jussseiedd ajudgment stating that the previous Polish
regulations determining the time of chargeabilifyemcise on electricity did not comply with the téations

of the EU Energy Directive.

On 11 February 2009 Elektrownia Kozienice appliedtlie Customs Office in Radom for ascertainment
and refund of overpaid excise in the amount of P&N.6 million for the period from January 2006 to
December 2008. Additionally, on 24 November 2008 @mmpany applied to the Customs Office in Radom
for ascertainment and refund of overpaid exciselentricity in the amount of PLN 34.6 million foaduary
and February 2009. the related administrative dicgs have been presented in detail in Note 47.3.

As the refund is not certain, the requested exgizsaefund was not included in these consolidabeantial

statements.

51. Negotiations concerning acquisition of shares

On 28 June 2010 the Minister of State Treasury iardéw, acting on behalf of the State Treasury based
on the Act on Commercialization and Privatizatioboyrnal of Laws of 2002, No. 171, item 1397,
as amended) on a detailed procedure for disposahafes held by the State Treasury (Journal of Laws
of 2009, No. 34, item 264), invited investors togogations concerning the acquisition of 225,136,94
i.e. 51% of shares in ENEA S.A. the State Treasugnds to sell the 225,135,940 shares with the fadue

of PLN 1 each. As of 31 December 2010, the Stad¢agury held 52.92% of the Company’s shares, b@e4.9

are employee shares. a portion of employee shaoes the pool including 9.43% of the share capital
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of the Company has been already assigned to digitulividuals based on relevant agreements congdlude
between the State Treasury and these individualsear successors.

Written replies to the public invitation to negadkiams concerning the acquisition of shares by pa@éen
investors that received the Investment Memorandwenewio be submitted by 28 July 2010. On 23 July
the Minister of Treasury announced that the deadied been extended until 13 August 2010.

In response to the invitation to negotiations conicyy the acquisition of shares of ENEA S.A. 6 gei filed
preliminary offers. Potential Investors had beerforimed of the related decision of the Minister
of the Treasury by 24 August. the Minister of thedsury approved five potential Investors to talest p
in the next stage of the privatization.

On 30 September 2010, potential Investors weretgdaaccess to electronic Data Room (informatiota da
and documents prepared for the due diligence aisalyshe ENEA Capital Group).

5 October was the deadline for filing final offéos the acquisition of shares in ENEA S.A.

Final offers were filed by four potential investo@n 12 October 2010, the Ministry of the Treasisgued

an announcement regarding parallel negotiationghersale of 51% of shares in ENEA S.A. with three
entities, and then on 19 October 2010, on contittie parallel negotiations with two entities. GhQctober
2010 the Ministry of the Treasury decided to sdeadline for exclusive negotiations with Kulczyk Itiag
(the guarantor) and Elektron Sp. z 0. o. (the bugér3 November 2010. Since the exclusive negotiati
period granted to Kulczyk Holding passed ineffeetion 16 November 2010 the Ministry of the Treasury
announced a decision to resume parallel negotmtiwith potential investors, and on 15 December 2010
decided to grant Electricite de France S.A. thhtrig exclusive negotiations. On 1 April 2011 thénlgtry of
Treasury took decision to close the process oihgelb1% of shares in ENEA S.A. without selecting an

investor.

52. Post balance sheet events

On 27 January 2011 an auction was announced forthensale of shares in the share capital
of Przedsibiorstwo Energetyki Cieplnej wremie S.A. the auction includes 6,860 ordinary segied shares

of Przedsibiorstwo Energetyki Cieplnej wremie S.A. with the face value of PLN 1,000 eact tre total
value of PLN 6,860 thousand, accounting for 41.@85%s share capital. the total market value ofghares —
corresponding to the starting price — is PLN 9,820,40 and has been based on measurement cartied ou
as of 30 June 2010. Since none of the potentiasiors paid the deposit within the deadline (28raty
2011), the tender did not end with selecting thgebuand ENEA S.A. remained the holder of the share
On 21 February 2011 ENEA S.A. received a lettemfil@entrozap S.A. (a holder of 51% of shares in PEC
Srem S.A.) declaring the will to buy the holding éuestion, but due to corporate procedures onlyr afte
16 May 2011. At the same time, Centrozap S.A. aetkephe starting price published in the tender
announcement.

Further proceedings will include:

1) ENEA S.A. to present Centrozap S.A. with a psgdoto conclude a preliminary shares acquisition
agreement by 31 May 2011 for the announced staptiicg;
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2) Supervisory Board of PESrem S.A. to agree to sell the holding (as requingdhe by-laws of PEGrem
S.A);
3) the holding to be sold by 31 May 2011.
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